
Page 1 of 3 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2018 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

18C‐0421. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

18C‐0422. Roll Call 

18C‐0423. Establishment of Quorum 
18C‐0424. Pledge of Allegiance 
18C‐0425. Reports of Standing Committees 
18C‐0426. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
  

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA18‐21 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0427. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 22, 2018 

4‐7 

 
18C‐0428. 

 
Second Reading and Approval of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 151.24 of the 
Galena Code of Ordinances Regarding the Demolition of Non‐Historic Structures 
in the National Register Historic District 

8‐9 

 
18C‐0429. 

 
Second Reading and Approval of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 79 of the 
Code of Ordinances to Remove the Parking Space for Persons with Disabilities on 
Bench Street in Front of the Courthouse  

10 

 
18C‐0430. 

 
Acceptance of the September 2018 Financial Report 

‐‐ 

 

Page 1 of 90



Page 2 of 3 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0431. 
 
Approval of a Contract with Keith Ahlvin for Reproduction Light Fixtures for 
Turner Hall 

11‐12 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0324. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by the Galena Police Department to 
Initiate a K‐9 Program   

13 

 
18C‐0410. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by the Galena‐Jo Daviess Historical 
Society and Museum for a Letter of Support for the New Museum Project 

14 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

18C‐0432. 
 
Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2017‐18 Annual Financial Report by O’Connor 
Brooks & Co.  

 
‐‐ 

 
18C‐0433. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Preparation of the Annual 
Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2019‐21 

 
15‐21 

 
18C‐0434. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the City of Galena to Borrow Funds 
from the Public Water Supply Loan Program 

 
22‐59 

 
18C‐0435. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for Replacing the Furnace and Air 
Conditioner at the Market House Restroom Building 

 
60 

 
18C‐0436. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of the Illinois Municipal 
League Risk Management Association Minimum/Maximum Contribution 
Agreement 

 
61‐67 

 
18C‐0437. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Establishing the Amount of the 2018 Tax Levy 
for Taxes to be Collected in 2019 

 
68‐79 

 
18C‐0438. 

 
Warrants 

 
80‐90 

18C‐0439.  Alderpersons’ Comments   
18C‐0440.  City Administrator’s Report    
18C‐0441.  Mayor’s Report   
18C‐0442.  Adjournment   

Page 2 of 90



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. Nov. 14  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Grant Park Committee  Fri. Nov. 16  10:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. Nov. 26  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. Dec. 6  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 

 
Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  

 
Posted: Thursday, November 8, 2018 at 4:00 p.m.    Posted By: 

Page 3 of 90



Regular Board Meeting  22 October 2018 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 22 OCTOBER 2018 
 

18C-0395 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 22 October 2018.  
 
18C-0396 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
18C-0397 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
18C-0398 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
18C-0399 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee – The Chamber of Commerce will be holding their Ghoulish Gala on 
Friday, October 26, 2018 to celebrate the 40th anniversary of the Halloween parade.   
 
18C-0400 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA18-20 
 
18C-0401 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
OCTOBER 9, 2018 
 
18C-0402 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 151.24 OF THE 
GALENA CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING THE DEMOLITION OF NON-HISTORIC 
STRUCTURES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICT 
 
18C-0403 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 79 OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES TO REMOVE THE PARKING SPACE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
ON BENCH STREET IN FRONT OF THE COURTHOUSE 
 
18C-0404 – APPROVAL OF THE PURCHASE OF A NEW INFLUENT PUMP FOR THE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,475 
 
18C-0405 – APPROVAL OF A REQUEST BY THE GALENA LIONS CLUB TO CONDUCT 
OKTOBERFEST IN DEPOT PARK ON OCTOBER 5, 2019 
 
18C-0406 – APPROVAL OF AN APPLICATION BY POOPSIE’S FOR A TEMPORARY USE 
PERMIT FOR AN OUTDOOR SALES EVENT ON NOVEMBER 2 AND 3 IN THE PARKING LOT 
OF THE GATEWAY TO HISTORY, 403 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
 
18C-0407 – APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT WITH JO DAVIESS COUNTY FOR ANIMAL 
CONTROL SERVICES 
 
18C-0408 – APPROVAL OF TRICK-OR-TREAT ON OCTOBER 31 FROM 5:30 TO 7:30 P.M. 
 

Page 4 of 90



Regular Board Meeting  22 October 2018 
 

Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the Consent Agenda, CA18-20.           
 
Discussion:  None.       
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

18C-0409 – REPORT ON FRIENDSHIP CITY WITH AGEN FRANCE FROM THE GALENA 
SISTER CITIES CITIZEN GROUP 
 
Susan Barg, committee member for the friendship city with Agen France shared photographs and 
information of their recent trip to Agen, France.  Barg was joined by fellow committee member 
Joan Klaus as well as 5-6 members of the exchange travel group.   
 
18C-0410 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY THE GALENA-JO 
DAVIESS HISTORICAL SOCIETY AND MUSEUM FOR A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR THE 
NEW MUSEUM PROJECT 
 
Presentation:  Nancy Breed shared a slide show on the new museum program.  She gave an 
overview of the organization describing what has been done to this point and the plans to move 
forward.   
 
Bernstein questioned if they intended to apply for LEADS Certification.  Breed advised they are 
still unsure how they will apply for the certification.  They are following the changes happening 
with the program to determine if the LEADS Certification is worth the money you have to spend to 
get it.  There are other systems that are more popular.  Even though it is in the budget, they will 
judge carefully when it comes closer to planning and decision making time.   
 
In terms of sustainability they are looking at Geo Thermal as well as green roof opportunities.  
The architects are well versed in different types to make it more efficient.   
 
Once the building is complete, an admission fee will be charged for revenue to help with 
maintenance.   
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Kieffer, to postpone item 18C-0410 to the next meeting.   
 
18C-0411 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN AGREEMENT TO FORMALIZE 
THE LOAN OF THE PEACE AND UNION PAINTING TO THE GALENA-JO DAVIESS COUNTY 
HISTORICAL SOCIETY AND MUSEUM 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the agreement to formalize the 
loan of the Peace and Union painting to the Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society and 
Museum.   
 
Discussion:  With consent of both parties, the agreement can be amended at any time.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

Page 5 of 90



Regular Board Meeting  22 October 2018 
 

18C-0412 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A CONTRACT WITH IIW ENGINEERS 
AND SURVEYORS FOR WATER TOWER ELIMINATION PHASES II AND III – WATER 
SYSTEM MODELING AND PROJECT PLAN 
 
Presentation:  Marc Ruden advised Phase I of the process analyzed the system on a storage 
level. On storage analysis it has been determined the City is able to consider elimination of the 
Franklin Street water tower.  Phase II of the process will construct a water hydraulic model and 
will provide an alternative analysis based on the findings.  The model will allow them to look at the 
existing system, removing the Franklin Street water tower and replacing the tower as well as 
various improvements that may need to take place.  The model will allow the City to move 
forward from the decision and look at in the future to determine what the system can support. The 
model will allow the city to utilize information for future uses.  The model will do a cost analysis of 
each option.  IIW will put together an alternative summary memo and present to council to make 
a decision on what direction to go.   
 
Phase III will only be necessary if the City decides to do the improvements and go for funding 
through the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  If the City should decide to stick with 
the existing and do painting, there is a possibility the funding process wouldn’t be necessary.  If 
the City were to determine they wish to either remove or replace the tower, the funding phase 
would be necessary.    
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Hahn, to contract with IIW Engineers and Surveyors for 
Water Tower Elimination Phase II in the amount of $35,400.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
18C-0413 – WATER AND WASTEWATER OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 
FROM VEOLIA 
 
Matt Trotter reported the following September Projects: 
 

 Repair on Hill Street of sanitary sewer.  This was the 3rd repair.   
 Replaced problem valve at Mars and Dodge Streets. 
 Drained, cleaned and inspected both clarifiers.  One is back in service.  The 

other one is awaiting parts.   
 Continue to work with Veolia and American Water on the changeover.  We 

should be nearing the end of the process. 
 
For the month of October, they will continue to work on preventative maintenance projects.   
 
18C-0414 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON BIDDING THE GALENA CANOE AND 
KAYAK LAUNCH PROJECT FOR 2019 CONSTRUCTION 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve going out for bid on the Galena Canoe 
and Kayak Launch Project for 2019 construction, 18C-0414.   
 
Discussion:  Hahn stated looking at the plans it would turn the area into a park with curb and 
gutter and a walkway at no expense to the City.  The project has been in the works since 2015.  
Bernstein questioned why we would do this when we have a boat dock on the other side of the 
river.  She was advised this area would be ADA accessible and the grant is for recreational 
purposes through the Department of Natural Resources.   
 

Page 6 of 90



Regular Board Meeting  22 October 2018 
 

Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
18C-0416 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the Warrants as presented, 18C-
0416.      
  
Discussion:  None.     
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
18C-0417 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Ghoulish Gala – Allendorf encouraged all to attend the Ghoulish Gala sponsored by the Galena 
Chamber of Commerce to be held at Turner Hall on Friday, October 26, 2018.   
 
Deer Carcus Removal – Fach stated we need to have some kind of avenue where citizens can 
call for deer carcus removal from sidewalks and streets on the weekends.   
 
18C-0418 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Gear Street – Fischer Excavating should begin paving Gear Street next week provided all goes 
well.   
 
Canine Program – Chief Huntington give an update on the fundraising efforts for the Canine 
Program.   
 
18C-0419 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner reminded all of the dance Friday night and the parade Saturday night. He noted 
the Public Works Department is working on getting the facilities in shape for winter.   
 
18C-0420 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 7 of 90



Ordinance #18‐______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 151, “HISTORIC PRESERVATION” OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Galena seeks to clarify the application, 

review, and approval processes for property owners that seek to demolish historic 
structures in the National Register Historic District; and  

 
WHEREAS, the changes described below are intended to continue to protect 

historic structures while streamlining the process for applicants seeking to obtain a 
building permit to demolish non‐historic structures inside the National Register Historic 
District; and  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

    SECTION I:  Chapter 151.24 (D), “Galena Historic Preservation 
Commission”, is hereby amended as follows (changes indicated italicized, 
bolded and underlined text): 

 
(1) Application. Each person intending to demolish a historic structure larger than 
100 square feet in floor area and within the Historic District shall file a certificate 
of appropriateness application with the Building Official or Board Secretary. The 
application shall be on a form provided by the city. 
 
(2) Notice of demolition request. An application for a certificate of appropriateness 
to demolish a historic structure larger than 200 square feet in ground area and 
within the Historic District shall require a public notice of the meeting to be 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city with the notice to state 
the time and place of the meeting, the purpose of the meeting and a brief 
description of property or properties under consideration at such meeting. The 
notice shall be published at least 15 but not more than 30 days prior to the 
hearing. Notice shall also be mailed at least 15 but not more than 30 days before 
the date of the hearing to all owners of property within 250 feet excluding public 
streets, roads or alleys, of the property affected by the demolition request. 
 
(3) Filing fee required. An application for the demolition of a structure in the 
Historic District shall be 
accompanied by a filing fee as established by the City Council. 
 
(4) Public meetings. All meetings shall be open to the public at which time a public 
hearing will be held regarding the properties under consideration. Consistent with 
city ordinances and state statutes the Galena Historic Preservation Commission 

Page 8 of 90



may adopt rules and regulations to govern the procedures of such meetings and 
the proper administration and enforcement of its duties pursuant to this section. 
 
(5) Demolition of a Non‐Historic Structure. Approval of an application for a 
certificate of appropriateness to demolish a non‐historic structure within Historic 
District shall be at the discretion of the planning department and approved by 
the mayor. The structure in question shall be, without a reasonable doubt, built 
after 1930 as determined by the planning department. All supporting evidence 
shall be reviewed by the planning department and mayor before approval. If the 
date of construction cannot be determined, the certificate of appropriateness 
shall be reviewed by the Historic Preservation Commission as stated in 151.24 
(D)(1) through (4). 
 

      SECTION II:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION III:  Passed on this _________ day of _____________, A.D., 
2018, in open session. 
            AYES:       NAYS:   
            
             
 
 
 
          ________________________________________ 
          TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

Page 9 of 90



 1

Ordinance #18‐______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 79 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
   BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

    SECTION I:  CHAPTER 79, SCHEDULE VI. “PARKING ZONES FOR PERSONS 
WITH DISABILITIES,” shall be amended to delete the following parking space 
for persons with disabilities:    

 

Street/Address  Location 

Bench Street  West side, southern most space in front of the 
courthouse 

 
    SECTION II:  CHAPTER 79, SCHEDULE VI. “PARKING ZONES FOR PERSONS 

WITH DISABILITIES,” shall be amended to add the following parking space for 
persons with disabilities:    

 

Street/Address  Location 

Bench Street  West side, in front of 302 North Bench Street 

 
      SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION IV:  Passed on this ____ day of _____, A.D., 2018, in open 
session. 
            AYES:       NAYS:   
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

Page 10 of 90



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager  

DATE:    November 5, 2018   

RE:  Light Fixture Upgrades at Turner Hall 

 

The current antique overhead light fixtures at Turner Hall are mismatched or are missing the globes or 
finials. The Hunter Fuerste Concert Committee, a subcommittee of The Galena Foundation, has 
generously agreed to donate $5,410.87 to restore the light fixtures and purchase new globes. 
 

       
 

The antique globes date back to 1927 and are not readily available. Keith Ahlvin has provided an 
estimate and a resin prototype to fit the existing chandeliers and fixtures. Please see Table 1. 
 
 
Table 1: Estimates from Keith Ahlvin for custom‐made lighting globes and finials 
 

Six (6) cast resin replica globes and cast resin tassel finials to fit light fixtures 
over the main floor seating area @ $400 each x 6 
 

$2,400 
 

Four (4) cast resin replica finials for existing globes on ceiling lights above 
the main seating balcony @ $50 each x 4 
 

$200 
 

Six (6) cast replica globes and finials to fit light fixtures under the main 
seating balcony @ $400 each x 6 
 

$2,400 

Subtotal for all three components  $5,000 
 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 90



2 of 2 

 
At the November 1, 2018 Turner Hall Committee meeting, “(Paul) Jackson moved, seconded by (Pat) 
Smith to recommend to City Council that we proceed with the light fixture restoration involving new 
globes produced by Keith Ahlvin for a cost of approximately $5,000. Cost to be covered by 2016  
Hunter Fuerste Concert funds of $5,410.87.” 

 
I would like to ask for City Council approval to proceed with purchasing cast resin globes and finials 
defined in Table 1 for Turner Hall. The project will be paid for with reimbursement from the Hunter 
Fuerste Concert Committee. 
 
Thank you. 

Page 12 of 90



Page 13 of 90



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
November 13, 2018 
 
RE: New Galena History Museum 
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
We are pleased to submit this letter of support for the Galena‐Jo Daviess County 
Historical Society (Society) to pursue grant funding to build a new history museum in 
Galena. 
 
After a decade of preparation and with the assistance of professional museum planners, 
the Society is moving forward with its goal of building a new ADA‐accessible, climate‐
controlled museum in Galena’s historic Bouthillier Street neighborhood.  With a fresh 
location and new exhibit facilities, the Society projects an enhanced visitor experience 
and increased attendance to sustain the project. 
 
A new 21st century museum is expected to have a strong economic impact on the city of 
Galena and the entire region.  Based on a study by Northern Illinois University, it is 
estimated that the new museum will result in an additional 5,000 overnight stays in 
Galena, generating $263 per day in local spending, or $1.3 million in new spending 
annually.  Economic impact during construction is expected to add $9.7 million to the 
county’s economy.    
 
For 80 years the Society has been a trusted and prudent steward of Galena’s vibrant 
history and culture. This new location will keep alive the Galena story for generations to 
come.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Pam Bernstein          Charles Fach         Robert Hahn         Chris Allendorf         Jerry Kieffer   
Alderperson           Alderperson          Alderperson          Alderperson             Alderperson 
 
 
 
Jerry Westemeier            Terry Renner 
Alderperson                   Mayor 

 
 

Page 14 of 90



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 19, 2018 

RE:    Audit   
 
 
At the October 9 meeting, you voted to request a proposal from O’Connor Brooks to complete the 
annual city audit for the next three years.  The firm recently completed the fiscal year 2018 audit as 
the final audit of a three‐year engagement.      
 
I am attaching the proposal received from O’Connor Brooks on October 18.  The proposal includes 
the firm’s proposed costs for the next three fiscal years, for both the main audit and a single audit.  
The single audit is only required in years when the City expends $750,000 or more of federal 
assistance.  A comparison of the proposed costs to the actual costs for the past three years is shown 
in Table 1 below.  
 

Table 1.  Audit Cost Proposal  
 

  Actual Fees     Proposed Fees 

Item  FY16  FY17  FY18    FY19  FY 20  FY 21 

City of Galena Audit  $22,000  $22,300 $22,700 $22,700 $22,900  $23,200

Single Audit       $5,000 $5,000 $5,000  $5,000

 
As shown in the table, the fee for FY 19, the first year of the new engagement, would be the same 
as last fiscal year.  The increase in FY 20 and FY 21 would be 0.8% and 1.3%, respectively.  

 
I recommend you approve the contract with O’Connor Brooks fiscal years 2019‐21 as proposed.  
 
  
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
   

Page 15 of 90



Page 16 of 90



Page 17 of 90



Page 18 of 90



Page 19 of 90



Page 20 of 90



Page 21 of 90



 

  

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:  Mark Moran, City Administrator   

DATE:  November 7, 2018 

RE:  Water System Improvements 
 
In 2015, IIW Engineers completed a study of our water system and recommended several 
projects to improve system supply, reliability, pressure, firefighting capability, and water quality 
on the east side of the community.  In 2017, you approved contracts for the design of the first 
phase of improvements and for the preparation of a related loan application to the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA).  For the past year, we have been working with IIW on 
the project design and Sharon Pepin of Community Funding and Planning Services on the 
preparation of the comprehensive loan application.  To continue moving the project forward, I 
am writing to present the tentative project schedule, estimated costs, and the loan 
authorization ordinance.  
 
We have nearly completed the application for the Public Water Supply Loan offered by the 
IEPA.  Part of the application is the attached Water Main Improvements Project Plan that 
explains the water system deficiencies and the project scope.  The IEPA loan currently offers an 
interest rate of 1.38% with the possibility of 75% of the principal being forgiven.  For the loan to 
be 75% forgivable, we must have the construction contract approved by June 1, 2019, and the 
funds are available on a first come first serve basis.  The following table shows the tentative 
schedule.  
 

Table 1.  East Side Water System Improvement Project: Tentative Schedule 
 

 Project Element Completion 
1 Adopt authorizing loan ordinance    November 2018  
2 Finalize plans and specifications December 2018 
3 Advertise project for bidding   February 2019 
4 Award construction contract  March 2019 
5 Construction  December 2020 

 
As the scope of the project has expanded and as the design has advanced, the estimated 
project cost has increased from $950,000 to $1.4 million.  The project elements and their 
estimated costs are shown in Table 2 on the following page.   

 

Page 22 of 90



Table 2.  Estimated Project Costs 
 

Project Element Estimated Cost 
Water main construction  $1,187,478 
Design engineer (most costs already incurred) $75,000 
Construction engineer  $127,300 
Loan administration $35,000 

TOTAL $1,424,778 
 
With 75% loan forgiveness, the City would be responsible for $356,195 of the project cost.  As 
part of the loan agreement with IEPA, the City must demonstrate that revenues from our Water 
Fund are sufficient to support the debt and all other expenses of the utility.  I am working with 
Pepin to finalize a 5-year budget for the Water Fund to determine if a rate increase will be 
required, and if so, the amount of the increase.   
 
The attached loan authorization ordinance is presented for a first reading only.  No action 
should be taken on the ordinance at the November 13 meeting.  At the November 26 meeting, 
Pepin will be present a project update, including the rate study findings.  At that meeting, you 
could decide to approve the ordinance and move forward with bidding the project.  The loan 
agreement would be presented for consideration after the bids are opened.  At that time, the 
council would have the final loan terms and would make the decision of whether to proceed 
with the project. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  
 

 
 
  

   
 
 
 

Page 23 of 90



Water Main Improvements 

Project Plan 

IEPA Loan #L17-1946 

 

City of Galena 

JoDaviess County, Illinois 

October 2018 

 
 

 
Prepared by: 
 
IIW, P.C.     Community Funding & Planning Services 
4155 Pennsylvania Avenue   118 S. Main Street 
Dubuque IA 62002-2628   Stockton IL 61085 
Phone:  563-556-7811    Phone:  815-947-8224 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SEAL 

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Illinois. 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
    Date 
License Number 
My license renewal date is  
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:  Entire Report 
 
__________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 24 of 90



 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 

 IEPA Project Planning Checklist ......................................................................................... i-ii 
 Executive Summary  ............................................................................................................ 3 
 Applicant’s Background Information................................................................................... 3 

Existing Conditions: 
Existing Water Usage ........................................................................................................... 4 

 Existing Water Supply Source .............................................................................................. 4 
 Existing Water Storage  ....................................................................................................... 5 
 Existing Distribution System ................................................................................................ 5 
 Existing or Possible Future Violations ................................................................................. 7 
 Proposed Improvements: 
 Alternative Selected ............................................................................................................ 8 
 Cost Estimate for Alternative .............................................................................................. 9 
 Assessment of the Alternative ............................................................................................ 9 
 Basis of Design for the Alternative Proposed Improvements  .......................................... 10 
 Inventory of Environmental Impacts ................................................................................. 12 
 Project Maps ...................................................................................................................... 12 
 Implementation Plan ......................................................................................................... 12 
 Financing Details: 
 Existing Rate Structure ...................................................................................................... 13 
 Water Main Improvements Project Financing .................................................................. 13 
 Operation and Maintenance Costs ................................................................................... 14 
 

 LIST OF EXHIBITS 

 Exhibit 1 – Environmental Review 
  Environmental Checklist 
  Illinois Historic Preservation Agency Correspondence 
  Illinois Department of Agriculture Correspondence 
  Illinois Department of Natural Resources Correspondence 
 
 Exhibit 2 – Project Maps 
  City of Galena Water System Map 
  City of Galena – Project Location Water System Improvements Map 

City of Galena – 1916 Inventory of Water System  

 Exhibit 3 – Engineer’s Cost Estimate   

  

Page 25 of 90



City of Galena 

Project Planning Information in Support of a Public Water Supply Loan 

For Water Main Improvements 

Executive Summary 

The City of Galena’s proposed Water Main Improvements Project includes the replacement of 
deteriorated and undersized mains in a targeted neighborhood within its water distribution system.  
The existing water mains, which service a good number of primarily residential customers, range in 
size from 4 inch to 10 inch diameter.  Some of the problems with the existing water mains considered 
in this project are that they do not meet the minimum sized main requirements for Code compliance, 
include several dead-end mains and have experienced multiple breaks to where they are beyond 
repair.   

The proposed Water Main Improvements Project entails focusing on a 12-block area, replacing the 
deteriorated and undersized mains with roughly 4,572 LF of new 10 inch water main and 730 LF of new 
6 inch water main.  The proposed 10 inch water main and 6 inch water main will be looped to provide 
improved water quality, pressure and flows.  A detailed project description is included on page 8, and 
a location map is provided under Exhibit 2. 

 

Applicant’s Background Information 

The City of Galena is located in Jo Daviess County in the northwest corner of the State and is home to 
the County Seat.  It's estimated that 1.2 million visitors come through Galena annually. Galena is 
considered one of the top three destinations (Chicago, Galena, Springfield) and is considered the No. 
2 destination for leisure travel (Chicago is No. 1, Springfield heavy on business travel) in Illinois. 

Per the 2010 census, the City’s population is 3,429, a decrease of 31 persons from the 2000 census 
data.  And per the population estimate for 2017, it shows a further decrease of 204 people.   

   Estimated 

YEAR 2000 2010 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Population 3,460 3,429 3,388 3,352 3,336 3,290 3,261 3,225 

 *US Census Data 

The City of Galena’s population has been steadily decreasing and they do not foresee a growth in 
population for the next 20 years, and there are no planned annexations that would aid in the 
population growth.  None of the City’s proposed improvements identified in this Plan involve adding 
new users. 

Page 26 of 90



The customer base for the City’s water system is broken down into three categories – residential, public 
and commercial - with residential being the primary user.  There are 2,019 user accounts, with 1,702 
of those being residential users.  The remaining 317 user accounts are made up of 10 public users and 
307 commercial users.  

Existing Conditions: 

Existing Water Usage    

Existing daily average water usage is displayed below: 

User Average Daily Demand 
Domestic Use 
Hotels 
Galena Park District/Pool 
Medical Center 
County Workshop 

 442,300 gpd 
51,300 gpd 

9,000 gpd 
4,200 gpd 
3,900 gpd 

 
Average residential per capita water use is 129 gallons per capita per day based on a 3,429-population 
equivalent.  The proposed project does not entail adding new users to the water system; only providing 
existing users with improved water service, pressure, flow and quality.    

 
Existing Water Supply Source    

The municipal water system is served by three municipal wells.  A general description of each of the 
three wells is identified below.   

 Well #5  Well #6 Well #7 
ID # 
Location 
Year constructed 
Pump Horsepower 
Pump Type 
Backup/auxiliary power 
Rate Capacity 

11739 
Franklin Street 
1963 
150 
Submersible pump 
Portable generator 
1100 gpm 

11740 
Gear Street 
2013 
 
Vertical Turbine Pump 
 
500 gpm 

01535 
Technical Drive 
2005 
200 
Submersible pump 
Fixed site generator 
1100 gpm 

 

Raw water from each of the supply wells is treated within the pump houses located next to the wells.  
Treatment includes chemical addition of polyphosphate, fluoride and chlorine.  There are no proposed 
improvements being made to the City’s water supply source.  

Page 27 of 90



Existing Water Storage     

Storage of water for the City’s distribution system takes place at several locations: the Industrial Park 
Water Tower, the Franklin Street Water Tower, the Dodge Park Standpipe and the Horseshoe Mound 
Reservoir.   

- The Industrial Park water tower is located on the west side of Technical Drive north of the 
intersection with Dandar Street directly adjacent to Well No. 7.  This tower has a total storage 
volume of 500,000 gallons.  The tower was constructed in 2006, and is in relatively good 
condition.  

- The Franklin Street water tower is located on Franklin Street near the intersection with Highway 
20 directly adjacent to Well No. 5.  Water supply for the tower comes from Well No. 5 and Well 
No. 6.  This tower has a storage volume of 450,000 gallons.  The tower is due for an inspection 
and painting, as well as safety repairs. 

- The Dodge Street Standpipe is located in Dodge Park near the intersection of Dodge Street and 
Hill Street.  The total storage volume of the standpipe is 750,000 gallons.  The structure is 
approximately 38 ft diameter and has a maximum water depth of 88 feet.  The approximate 
high water elevation is 873 ft msl.  This tank is in good condition, was cleaned and the lower 
section recoated in 2014. 

- Horseshoe Mound Reservoir is located south of Highway 20 on the east side of the City.  The 
concrete structure is in good condition consisting of two square reservoirs approximately 42 ft 
in length per side and 12 ft water depth.  The operating range of water elevations in the 
reservoir is 937 to 939.5 ft msl.  The total storage volume is 300,000 gallons. 

The main purpose of a water reservoir is for storage, in the event one or more of the wells are out of 
service.  It also provides as an extra source of water for short durations and high flow events such as 
fire-fighting.   

The City of Galena is currently evaluating the condition and need of the Franklin Street water tower.  
At this time, the work on the Franklin Street water tower is not defined, nor is it a pressing matter.  As 
such, the City’s loan application does not include any improvements to the water tower, as this is still 
being evaluated.  However, the City may submit at a later date another Public Water Supply Loan 
Application once it determines its water storage needs. 

 
Existing Distribution System    

The City of Galena’s water distribution system delivers water from the wells and reservoirs to each of 
the individual users with adequate pressure and flow.  Portions of the City’s water distribution system 
are very old, with records dating back to the 1880s.  The distribution system piping consists of roughly 
28.5 miles of mains ranging in size from 2” to 12” in diameter, constructed primarily of cast iron and 
ductile iron with polyethylene wrap.  Newer piping in developments does include PVC.  

Page 28 of 90



An ‘inventory’ of the City of Galena’s water system was completed in 1916; a scan of pages from that 
report are included as supporting information under Exhibit 2 – Project Maps.  The City has no record 
that any of the water mains within the project area were ever replaced, with the existing sizes of the 
mains for the given area matching the sizes shown in the historic inventory record.  Many of the water 
mains in the project area are prone to breaks; when excavated for repairs, the exposed mains are 
reported to be deteriorated and even ‘porous’ in places.  From 1988 to 1999, as many as 14 water 
main breaks were recorded in certain locations of the proposed project area.  In the years since, a 
break every one-to-two years is common.  These water main breaks result in loss of service and boil 
orders to facilitate repairs.  

Many of the existing water service lines are as old as the mains they connect to. It is not uncommon 
to find lead service lines in these older parts of town (especially in Galena). Others may be made of 
galvanized iron. Water service line leaks are common in the study area - many have been repaired and 
some have been replaced over the years. 

In addition to the aged and deteriorated condition of these water mains they are also undersized in 
diameter and some are not looped with dead-ends and the issues associated with that situation.  The 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency requires that all new mains be at least 6 inch in diameter.  Of 
the 10 blocks of existing main being replaced, all but 3 have 4-inch diameter mains.  The remaining 3 
blocks have small sections of 10 inch and 6 inch piping.  Within the proposed project area, there exists 
two gaps caused by dead-ends, within the water distribution system that are in need of addressing, 
with each gap being roughly one-block in length.  The looping of these two gaps, or dead-end areas, 
will provide improved water quality and service and eliminate stagnate water problems.  

The City of Galena’s distribution system is divided into four pressure zones from west to east: 
Industrial Pressure Zone (IPZ), West Pressure Zone (WPZ), Low Pressure Zone (LPZ), and East Pressure 
Zone (EPZ).   

- The IPZ is supplied by water through Well No. 7 and through the Industrial Park Booster 
Pumping Station. 

- The WPZ is supplied by water through Well Nos 5 and 6.  Pressure is controlled at the Franklin 
Street water tower. 

- The LPZ is supplied by water through the west pressure zone via an altitude valve at the 
Dodge Street standpipe.  Pressure is controlled by the standpipe. 

- The EPZ is supplied by water through the Bouthillier Booster Pumping Station, and pressure is 
controlled at the Horseshoe Mound reservoir. 

There are seven pressure reducing stations located on Elk Street, Franklin and Dodge, Dodge and 
Washington, West and Washington, Spring and Summit, Gear and West, and Clay Streets.  There are 
no proposed improvements being made to any of the City’s pressure zones.  

Page 29 of 90



Booster Pump Stations  

The transfer of water from lower pressure zones to higher pressure zones occur at the City’s two 
booster pump stations (BPS): Industrial Park BPS and Bouthillier Street BPS. 

- The Industrial Park BPS is located east of Highway 20, north of the intersection with Franklin 
Street.  The station includes three pumps rated at 360, 650 and 940 gpm, respectively.   

- The Bouthillier Street (East Side) BPS is located at 307 Bouthillier Street.  The station includes 
two high service pumps rated at 450 gpm each.   

There are no proposed improvements being made to either of the City’s booster pump stations.   

 

Water Metering and Service Lines 

All users within the City’s water distribution system are metered.  In 2002, the City replaced a majority 
of its water meters with new radio-read meters, which now have a 20-year life span.  The City will 
continue to replace meters that are found to be defective or inaccurate.  Galena uses Sensus water 
meters, radio-read (drive by and/or cellular).   The proposed improvements do not include the 
replacement of any of the City’s water meters. 

 

Existing or Possible Future Distribution System Violations    

A field inspection of the City’s Water System was completed by the Illinois Environmental Protection 
Agency in April 2017.  The inspection report noted that the City’s water supply is in general compliance 
with regulatory requirements, and no deficiencies were noted during the inspection.  However, 
recommendations to improve the reliability of the water system were outlined in the report, as 
follows: 

1. The average daily pumpage is relatively high for the population served and the amount of 
unaccounted water exceeds 15%.  A thorough check of the distribution system for leaks is 
recommended.  The accountability and financial condition of the water system would be 
enhanced by a review of billing procedures.  Additionally, consumer water meters should be 
repaired or replaced if found to be defective or inaccurate.  Meters should be replaced at a 10-
year or more frequent interval. 

In response to the above recommendations, the City has completed the following: 

In 2017, Galena and several other communities in Jo Daviess County, purchased a high-tech leak 
detection unit.  This equipment is assisting the City in further identifying and locating leaks within its 
water system.  The proposed water main improvements should assist in the reduction of water loss 
with the replacement of deteriorated water mains that have experienced multiple breaks in the past. 

Page 30 of 90



Proposed Improvements - 

Assessment of Alternatives 

The following water main improvement recommendations make up the City of Galena’s IEPA Public 
Water Supply Loan application.  The proposed Water Main Improvements Project calls for the 
replacement of about 10 blocks of aged, deteriorated, and undersized water mains, and looping of 
two, one-block gaps, all on the east side of the Galena River. 

- Park Avenue:  The current water main routing under Park Avenue includes portions of 10 inch, 
6 inch, and 4 inch water main. The 10 inch water main runs between Bouthillier Street and 
Johnson Street (1 block). The 6 inch water main runs between Johnson Street and Jackson 
Street (2 blocks). The 4 inch water main runs between Jackson Street and Adams Street at the 
northmost run (4 blocks). This portion of the project involves replacing approximately 300 feet 
of 10 inch water main, 700 lineal feet of 6 inch water main, and 1,525 lineal feet of 4 inch water 
main with new 10 inch water main. The new main will solve the problems with the failing water 
mains and will remove this bottleneck of 6 inch and 4 inch piping in the north portion of the 
low pressure zone on the east side of the river. 
 

- Decatur Street (US 20):  The south portion of the low pressure zone on the east side of the river 
is served primarily by 4 inch water mains. The exception is an 8 inch portion of pipe installed 
under Park Avenue between Bouthillier Street and Decatur Street in 2013. This portion of the 
project involves replacing approximately 720 lineal feet of 4 inch water main under Decatur 
Street between Park Avenue and 4th Street (2 blocks) and 360 linear feet of 4 inch water main 
under 3rd Street from Decatur Street to LaFayette Street (1 block). The new main will solve the 
problems with the failing water mains and will also remove a bottleneck of 4 inch piping on the 
east side. 
 

- Looping of Gaps:  Within the vicinity of the study area, there exist two gaps in the water 
distribution system that are in need of addressing. Each gap is approximately 1 block long.  

o The first gap is on LaFayette Street. There is no water main from Park Avenue to 3rd 
Street. This block has a residence on the north side at mid-block. This house is 
reportedly served through the use of an extra-long water service line that extends for a 
half-block, approximately 150 to 200 feet, up the street from either Park Avenue or 3rd 
Street (records are not available).  

o A second gap exists along 5th Street, from Madison Street to Louieville Court. The end 
of the existing main at 5th Street and Louieville Court is currently at the end of a 1,100-
foot-long, 6 inch-diameter, dead-end water main. At Madison Street, the size of the 
water main is 6 inches as well. With regard to reliability, a water main break along any 
part of this dead-end main will shut down the entire length of the main until the break 
can be repaired, filled, disinfected, and flushed prior to returning to service again.  In 

Page 31 of 90



addition, the flows and velocity along this dead-end main are limited due to its length 
and size.   

The two gaps in the system are creating operational, reliability, flow, and/or pressure problems. 
The gap on LaFayette Street has required an extra-long service line to a residential customer. 
The gap on 5th Street leaves up to 1,100 feet of a dead-end water main vulnerable to service 
outages if a break were to occur. It is recommended that 1 block of water main be installed in 
each case to close these gaps (350 LF of 10 inch and 330 LF of 6 inch, respectively). It is also 
recommended that a new service line be connected to the new water main on LaFayette Street 
and installed to the right-of-way line at the mid-block residence (no service lines are needed 
on 5th Street). 

 
Assessment of Alternatives 

The City essentially has two alternatives: 1) do nothing and continue to experience main breaks; 
continue to suffer from reliability, water quality, and pressure issues due to the gaps; and continue to 
be in violation with undersized water mains; or 2) replace the deteriorated, undersized water mains 
with larger-sized mains, close the gaps, and provide improved water service.  The City has selected to 
move forward with the second alternative and is seeking to replace a portion of the identified 
undersized and/or deteriorated mains, and eliminate four dead-end mains, within its water 
distribution system.  Roughly 4572 LF of existing water mains will be replaced with 10 inch main and 
roughly 730 LF of new 6 inch water main.  Proposed 10 inch water main and 6 inch water main will be 
looped to eliminate the four dead-end mains.  The proposed improvements will provide improved 
water quality, increased water pressure and flow, and eliminate stagnant water for its residential and 
commercial customers.  Approximately 78 homes will be directly impacted and will receive new water 
services properly tapped off of a Code appropriate water main.  This represents approximately 2.24% 
of the residents in the City.  The proposed improvement will also benefit the entire community as it 
will improve the overall water distribution system. 

 
Cost Estimate for Alternative   

A detailed engineer’s construction estimate is included as Exhibit 3.  Estimated Costs for the 
proposed water main improvements project is as follows: 

• Construction Costs = $1,079,525 
• Construction Contingency Cost @ 10% = $107,953 
• Planning and Design Engineering Costs = $75,000 
• Bidding and Construction Engineering Costs = $127,300 
• Loan Project Management = $35,000 

 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS = $1,424,778 

Page 32 of 90



The proposed Water Main Improvements Project is anticipated to be funded entirely with an IEPA 
Public Water Supply Loan. 

 

Basis of Design for Alternative   

Applicable Code and Standards 
 
Ownership and operation of public water supplies is directed by the Illinois Administrative 
Code, Title 35: Environmental Protection, Subtitle F: Public Water Supplies.  Owners and official 
custodians of a public water supply shall provide, pursuant to the Environmental Protection Act 
(Act), the Pollution Control Board (Board) Rules, and the Safe Drinking Water Act, continuous 
operation and maintenance of public water supply facilities so that the water be assuredly safe 
in quality, clean, adequate in quantity, and of satisfactory characteristics for ordinary domestic 
consumption and Recommended Standards for Water Works. 
 
In conjunction with Title 35, the Great Lakes—Upper Mississippi River Board of State and 
Provincial Public Health and Environmental Managers established the Recommended 
Standards for Water Works, aka: The 10-States Standards.  These recommended standards 
acknowledge that statutory requirements and legal authority pertaining to public water 
supplies are not uniform among the member states, and since conditions and administrative 
procedures and policies also differ, the use of these standards must be adjusted to these 
variations.  These standards are intended to serve as a guide in the design of public water 
supplies, upon which an evaluation may be made by the reviewing authority, and to establish, 
as far as practicable, uniformity of practice. 
 
The City of Galena proposes water main construction to correct deficiencies within its public 
water supply as promulgated by the following Illinois Administrative Code, Title 35, and 
Recommended Standards for Water Works, 2012 Edition, specifically as these deficiencies 
relate to the following sections of Title 35 and the 10-States Standards: 

o Illinois Administrative Code, Title 35: Environmental Protection, Subtitle F: Public Water 
Supplies 
 

o Section 653.106 Distribution System Pressure 
653.106(a) Distribution system design shall conform to the Standards. 
653.106(b) Distribution systems shall be designed to maintain a minimum 

pressure of 20 psi measured at the ground surface in all parts 
of the system under fire-fighting demand or other similar 
emergency  operating conditions. 

o Section 653.117 Distribution Systems 
653.117(d) The system shall be designed to meet existing demands of the 

distribution system.  Future distribution system demands shall 
be taken into account. 

  

Page 33 of 90



 
i. The minimum size water main shall be 4-inch nominal 

diameter in distribution system serving incorporated 
areas, subdivisions or other closely situated housing or 
commercial units 

ii. The minimum size water main shall be 3-inch nominal 
diameter in distribution systems serving rural areas 
where service connections are widely spaced, water 
usage per service is low and rates of flow are slow. 

 
o Recommended Standards for Water Works as adopted by the Great Lakes-Upper 

Mississippi River Board of State and Provincial Public Health and Environmental 
Managers, 2012 Edition. 

o Part 8: Distribution System Piping and Appurtenances 
8.0 General 

Water Distribution systems shall be designed to maintain treated water 
quality… Systems should be designed to maximize turnover and to 
minimize residence times while delivering acceptable pressures and 
flows. 

8.2 System Design 
8.2.1 Pressure 

…The system shall be designed to maintain a minimum 
pressure of 20 psi at ground level at all points in the distribution 
system under all conditions of flow.  The normal working 
pressure in the distribution system should be approximately 60 
to 80 psi and not less than 35 psi. 

8.2.2 Diameter 
The minimum size of water main which provides for fire 
protection and service fire hydrants shall be six-inch diameter.  
Larger size mains will be required if necessary to allow the 
withdrawal of the required fire flow while maintaining the 
minimum residual pressure specified in Section 8.2.1 
 
The minimum size of water main in the distribution system 
where fire protection is not to be provided should be a 
minimum of three (3) inch diameter… 

8.2.4 Dead Ends 
b. Dead ends shall be minimized by making appropriate tie-

ins whenever practical, in order to provide increased 
reliability of service and reduce head loss. 

 
 

  

Page 34 of 90



Inventory of Environmental Impacts 

The City of Galena’s proposed Water Main Improvements Project entails the replacement and 
construction of roughly 4,572 LF of 10 inch main and 730 LF of 6 inch main, along with looping the new 
mains to provide improved water flow, reliability and quality.  The water main component will result 
in an increase in main size and also includes new construction. 

This section discusses the environmental impacts and sign-offs required for the proposed Water Main 
Improvements Project in accordance with the IEPA Environmental Checklist.  Letters were sent to the 
various state agencies requesting a review of the proposed project for environmental impacts.  
Environmental clearance letters have been received from the State Historic Preservation Office, the 
Illinois Department of Natural Resources and the Illinois Department of Agriculture.  All letters 
indicated little to no environmental impacts will result from the proposed water main project; copies 
of all environmental review correspondence are included under Exhibit 1.    A copy of the IEPA Loan 
Applicant Environmental Checklist is being provided under Exhibit 1 as well.  

 

Project Maps 

The following maps are included under Exhibit 2 as part of the ‘Basis of Design’: 

• City of Galena – Water System Map  
• City of Galena – Water Main Improvements Map, with proposed project locations 
• City of Galena – 1916 Inventory of Water System  

 

Implementation Plan 

The implementation plan for the City’s Water Main Improvements Project is as follows: 

• IEPA Project Plan Submittal     November 2018  
• Plans and Specifications Completed    December 2018 
• User Charge System and Water Use Ordinance  November 2018 
• Advertise for Bids      February 2019 
• Contract Award      April 2019 
• Completion of Construction     December 2019 

All financial information relative to the City’s existing water revenue and debt, along with a description 
of the dedicated source of revenue needed for the proposed improvements will be provided in the 
Financial Information component of the IEPA final loan application.   

 

Page 35 of 90



Financing Details- 

Existing Rate Structure   

The City of Galena provides municipal water, billing on a monthly basis with the following water user 
rate structure: 

 $4.03 Monthly User Fee  
$4.72 per 1,000 gallons 

 
Per the City’s utility billing program, the actual average residential water use per customer per month 
is 3870 gallons.  Based upon the above water rate structure, the average monthly residential bill is 
$22.30.  There are 2,019 user accounts, with 1,702 of those being residential users.  The remaining 317 
user accounts are made up of 10 public users and 307 commercial users. 

Galena has essentially completed infrastructure projects as needed, using local funds.  However, as 
you can see by the list of recommended water system improvements and their associated costs, the 
City is forced to look at financial assistance for completion of needed infrastructure projects. 

A few years ago, the City was successful in securing a Community Development Block Grant for the 
extension of municipal sewer, hooking up several residential houses within the city’s limits and 
abandoning failing septic systems.  However, due to recent changes in the Community Development 
Block Grant Program, the City may not be eligible to apply for these grant funds any longer, and so 
information on the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency’s Public Water Supply State Revolving 
Loan Program was provided.   

The proposed water main improvements project is estimated to cost $1,424,778.   

• Construction Costs = $1,079,525 

• Construction Contingency Cost @ 10% = $107,953 

• Planning and Design Engineering Costs = $75,000 

• Bidding and Construction Engineering Costs = $127,300 

• Loan Project Management = $35,000 

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS = $1,424,778 

 

Water Main Improvements Project Financing 

The City of Galena proposes to finance the Water Main Improvements Project entirely with IEPA Public 
Water Supply loan funds.  Based on the current PWSLP terms, a $1,424,778 total project cost financed 
over 20 years at 1.84% would result in an annual debt of roughly $85,247.  The loan debt per user, 
based upon 2019 users, would be $3.52 per user per month. 

Page 36 of 90



However, based upon the IEPA Disadvantaged Community Principal Forgiveness loan criteria, the City 
would be eligible to receive up to 50% of total project costs or a maximum of $500,000 being forgiven, 
which would result in Galena financing $924,778.  The City of Galena also meets the criteria for the 
Small Community Interest Rate, as its population is less than 25,000, and the City’s median household 
income is $48,537, which is less than the statewide average of $59,196, resulting in the City securing a 
loan at 1.38%.  The City is seeking a 20-year loan and the annual debt on a $924,778 loan would be 
roughly $52,950.  There are roughly 2,019 users on the water system, making the monthly debt per 
user being $2.19 based on a $924,778 loan.   

Effective July 1, 2018, the Principal Forgiveness loan criteria increased to 75% of total project costs or 
a maximum of $1,500,000 being forgiven.  This scenario would result in the City of Galena being eligible 
to receive up to $1,068,583 in forgivable loan incentive, resulting in Galena financing a $356,195 loan 
at 1.38% over 20 years.  The annual debt would be roughly $20,395, with a monthly debt per user 
being $0.84 based on a $356,195 loan.  This annual debt will be paid via an increase in the City’s water 
user rate.  This would significantly improve the City’s water distribution system, providing improved 
water flows and pressure to area residents, as well as improved water quality throughout the system.  
By securing principal loan forgiveness funding, water improvements can be made without creating a 
financial hardship to the residents of Galena.  As the City’s loan application process continues, the 
dedicated revenue source will be discussed in more detail.   

A copy of the City of Galena’s most recent audited financial statements is provided under separate 
cover.   A review of Galena’s audited financial statements shows the following. 

• Water Fund had revenues of $693,397 and expenses of $730,631, leaving a net loss of ($37,254) 
for the fiscal year ended 4/30/2018; it should be noted that the net loss is after depreciation.  
More detailed information on the City’s water fund is being gathered and will be forwarded 
along with the historical and projected financial data. 

• Existing IEPA Drinking Water loan issued in 2004 – annual debt roughly $162,000 thru 2024; 

The City does anticipate an increase in the water user rates to generate the revenue needed for the 
annual debt associated with the proposed water main project.  The last water user rate increase was 
in 2004, at which time the City completed a water tower project.  A review of the overall water 
revenues and expenses is being completed as part of the financial review, which may indicate an 
increase in the water user rates to cover the operation and maintenance costs as well. 

All financial information relative to the City’s existing water revenue and expenses, along with a 
description of the dedicated source of revenue needed for the proposed improvements will be 
provided in the Financial Information component of the IEPA final loan application.   

 
  

Page 37 of 90



Operation and Maintenance Costs 

Operation and maintenance costs for the water system in the City of Galena is estimated to stay nearly 
the same because the proposed construction project does not result in a net change in the number of 
municipal well systems or elevated storage tanks in the City.  The total operating expenses are 
approximated to continue to be $730,000 per year, as noted in the FY2018 audit. 

 

Local Newspaper 

The local newspaper is the Galena Gazette, 716 S. Bench Street, Galena IL 61036.  Phone is 815-777-0019; fax is 
815-777-3809. 

  

Page 38 of 90



 

 

Exhibit 1 

Environmental Checklist 

 

• IEPA Environmental Checklist 
• Environmental Correspondence 

o Illinois Historic Preservation Agency 
o Illinois Department of Agriculture 
o Illinois Department of Natural Resources  

 

  

Page 39 of 90



Page 40 of 90



Page 41 of 90



Page 42 of 90



Page 43 of 90



Page 44 of 90



Page 45 of 90



Page 46 of 90



Page 47 of 90



Page 48 of 90



 

 

Exhibit 2 

Project Maps 

 
• City of Galena Water System Map 
• City of Galena – Project Location Water Main Improvements Map 
• City of Galena – 1916 Inventory of Water System  

 
  

Page 49 of 90



Page 50 of 90



Page 51 of 90



 
 
 
 

Exhibit 3 

Engineer’s Cost Estimate 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 52 of 90



Page 53 of 90



 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GALENA  
TO BORROW FUNDS FROM THE  

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY LOAN PROGRAM  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, IL operates its public water 
supply/waterworks system (“the System”) in accordance with the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/11-
139-1, et. seq., and the Local Government Debt Reform Act, 30 ILCS 350/1 (collectively, “the 
Act”), and  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Galena (“the Corporate 
Authorities”) have determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the best interests of public 
health, safety and welfare to improve the System, including the following:  
 

Water system improvements entailing focusing on a 12-block area, replacing the 
deteriorated and undersized mains with roughly 4,572 l.f. of new 10” water main and 
730 l.f. of new 6” water main, including looping of mains to provide improved water 
quality, pressure and flows, including associated water appurtenances and restoration 
work,   

 
together with any land or rights in land and all electrical, mechanical or other services 
necessary, useful or advisable to the construction and installation (“the Project”), all in 
accordance with the plans and specifications prepared by consultants of the City of Galena, 
which Project has a useful life of 20 years; and  
 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost to purchase and install the Project, including 
engineering, legal, financial, administrative and other related expenses is $1,424,778, and there 
are insufficient funds on hand and lawfully available to pay these costs; and   
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Procedures for Issuing Loans from the Public 
Water Supply Loan Program Title 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 662, Section 662.210 Fixed Loan 
Rate, the City meets the criteria for the Small Community Interest Rate thereby qualifying for a 
fixed interest loan rate equal to 75% of the Base 20 Year Rate; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Procedures for Issuing Loans from the Public 

Water Supply Loan Program Title 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 662, the City meets the 
Disadvantaged Community Principal Forgiveness and is eligible to have up to 75% of the 
Project costs be forgiven by the State of Illinois pursuant to principal loan forgiveness 
provisions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the principal and interest payment shall be payable semi-annually, and the 
loan shall mature in 20 years, which is within the period of useful life of the Project; and  
 

WHEREAS, the costs are expected to be paid for with a loan to the City of Galena from 
the Public Water Supply Loan Program through the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, 
the loan to be repaid from revenues of the System and the loan is authorized to be accepted at 
this time pursuant to the Act; and   

Page 54 of 90



 

2 
 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the City of Galena is 

authorized to borrow funds from the Public Water Supply Loan Program in the aggregate 
principal amount of $1,750,000 to provide funds to pay the costs of the Project;   
 

WHEREAS, the loan to the City of Galena shall be made pursuant to a Loan 
Agreement, including certain terms and conditions, between the City of Galena and the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Corporate Authorities of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, IL, as follows:  
 

SECTION 1.  INCORPORATION OF PREAMBLES 
 
The Corporate Authorities hereby find that the recitals contained in the preambles are true and 
correct, and incorporate them into this Ordinance by this reference.  
 

SECTION 2.  DETERMINATION TO BORROW FUNDS 
 
It is necessary and in the best interests of the City of Galena to construct the Project for the 
public health, safety and welfare, in accordance with the plans and specifications, as described; 
that the System continues to be operated in accordance with the provision of the Act; and that 
for the purpose of constructing the Project, it is hereby authorized that funds be borrowed by the 
City of Galena in an aggregate principal amount (which can include construction period interest 
financed over the term of the loan) not to exceed $1,750,000.  
 

SECTION 3.  PUBLICATION 
 
This Ordinance, together with a Notice in the statutory form (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”), 
shall be published once within 10 days after passage in The Galena Gazette, a newspaper 
published and of general circulation in the City of Galena, and if no petition signed by electors 
numbering 10% or more of the registered voters in the City of Galena (i.e., 235) asking that the 
question of improving the System as provided in this Ordinance and entering into the Loan 
Agreement therefore be submitted to the electors of the City of Galena, is filed with the City of 
Galena City Clerk within 30 days after the date of publication of this Ordinance and notice, then 
this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect. A petition form shall be provided by the City 
Clerk to any individual requesting one.  
 

SECTION 4.  ADDITIONAL ORDINANCES 
 
If no petition meeting the requirements of the Act and other applicable laws is filed during the 
30 day petition period, then the Corporate Authorities may adopt additional ordinances or 
proceedings supplementing or amending this Ordinance providing for entering into the Loan 
Agreement with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, prescribing all the details of the 
Loan Agreement, and providing for the collection, segregation and distribution of the revenues 
of the System, so long as the maximum amount of the Loan Agreement as set forth in this 
Ordinance is not exceeded and there is no material change in the Project or purposes described 
herein. Any additional ordinances or proceedings shall in all instances become effective in 
accordance with the Act or other applicable law. This Ordinance, together with such additional 

Page 55 of 90



 

3 
 

ordinances or proceedings, shall constitute complete authority for entering into the Loan 
Agreement under applicable law.  
 
However, notwithstanding the above, the City of Galena may not adopt additional ordinances or 
amendments which provide for any substantive or material change in the scope and intent of 
this Ordinance, including but not limited to interest rate, preference, or priority of any other 
ordinance with this Ordinance, parity of any other ordinance with this Ordinance, or otherwise 
alter or impair the obligation of the City of Galena to pay the principal and interest due to the 
Public Water Supply Loan Program without the written consent of the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency. 
 

SECTION 5.  LOAN NOT INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY OF GALENA 
 
Repayment of the loan to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency by the City of Galena 
pursuant to this Ordinance is to be solely from the revenue derived from revenues of the 
System, and the loan does not constitute an indebtedness of the City of Galena within the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation.  
 

SECTION 6.  APPLICATION FOR LOAN 
  
The City of Galena Mayor is hereby authorized to make application to the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency for a loan through the Public Water Supply Loan Program, in 
accordance with the loan requirements set out in 35 Ill. Adm. Code 662.    
 

SECTION 7.  ACCEPTANCE OF LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
The Corporate Authorities hereby authorize acceptance of the offer of a loan through the Public 
Water Supply Loan Program, including all terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement as well 
as all special conditions contained therein and made a part thereof by reference.  The Corporate 
Authorities further agree that the loan funds awarded shall be used solely for the purposes of the 
project as approved by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement.  
 

SECTION 8.  RESERVE ACCOUNTS 
 
The City of Galena does not contemplate establishing any reserve accounts because it does not 
have any revenue bonds outstanding that would be superior or senior to the debt obligation 
contemplated herein.  
 

SECTION 9.  AUTHORIZATION OF CITY OF GALENA MAYOR 
TO EXECUTE LOAN AGREEMENT 

 
The City Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Loan Agreement with the 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.  The Corporate Authorities may authorize by 
resolution a person other than the Mayor for the sole purpose of authorizing or executing any 
documents associated with payment requests or reimbursements from the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency in connection with this loan.  
 

Page 56 of 90



 

4 
 

SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, the invalidity of 
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other provisions of this 
Ordinance.  
 

SECTION 11.  REPEALER 
 
All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, which conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.   
 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois on November 
26, 2018. 
 
Introduced:   
Passed:   
Approved:   
 
           
ATTEST:     Terry Renner, Mayor   
  
 
     
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
 
  
Ayes:   
Nays:   
Absent:   
 
 
PUBLISHED in the Galena Gazette on December 5, 2018 
RECORDED in the City of Galena records on November 27, 2018 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois 
 
  

Page 57 of 90



 

5 
 

 
  
  

CERTIFICATION  
 
 
I, MARY BETH HYDE, certify that I am the Clerk of the City of Galena.  I do further certify 
that the above and foregoing, identified as Ordinance Number ______________, is a true, 
complete and correct copy of an ordinance otherwise identified as “An Ordinance Authorizing 
the City of Galena to Borrow Funds from the Public Water Supply Loan Program” passed by 
the City Council of the City of Galena on November 26, 2018, and approved by the Mayor of 
the City of Galena on the same said date, the original of which is part of the books and records 
within my control as Clerk of the City of Galena.  
 

Dated this 26h day of November 2018. 

 
           

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk  
 
 
 
 

Page 58 of 90



 

6 
 

 
Exhibit “A” 

  
  

NOTICE OF INTENT TO BORROW FUNDS 
AND RIGHT TO FILE PETITION 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, pursuant to Ordinance Number _____________, adopted 
on November 26, 2018, the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, IL, ( the “entity”) intends to 
enter into a Loan Agreement with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $1,750,000 and bearing annual interest at an amount not to 
exceed the maximum rate authorized by law at the time of execution of the Loan Agreement, for 
the purpose of paying the cost of certain improvements to the public water supply system of the 
City of Galena.  A complete copy of the Ordinance accompanies this Notice.  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that if a petition signed by 235 or more electors of 
the City of Galena (being equal to 10% of the registered voters in the City of Galena), 
requesting that the question of improving the public water supply system and entering into the 
Loan Agreement is submitted to the City Clerk within 30 days after the publication of this 
Notice, the question of improving the public water supply system of the City of Galena as 
provided in the Ordinance and Loan Agreement shall be submitted to the electors of the City of 
Galena at the next election to be held under general election law on April 2, 2019.  A petition 
form is available from the Office of the City Clerk.  
  
 
     
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois 
 
 

Page 59 of 90



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager  

DATE:    November 6, 2018   

RE:  HVAC Replacement at Market House Annex, 121 N. Commerce Street 

 

The furnace at the Market House Annex needs to be replaced. The system is estimated to be over  
20 years old. The City has been maintaining the building—which is owned by the State of Illinois‐‐ 
due to state budget cuts. The building hosts public restrooms and a renter—local artists who operate  
a retail shop called “Hello Galena.” The building is also next to the Galena Welcome Center / Old 
Market House State Historic Site which offers tourist information and visitor services. 
 

A request for quotes for removal and replacement of the furnace and air conditioning unit was sent 
out and posted to the City’s website on October 5. We received four responses. The quotes are higher  
than what is currently in the City’s maintenance budget for the building. Current balance for this 
facility’s maintenance budget is $1,385.71 with six months left in the fiscal year. Discussion was held 
with the four respondents asking them for a revised estimate for the furnace replacement only, with 
intent to budget for air conditioning replacement in the new fiscal year. Quotes received are outlined 
in Table 1.  

 

Table 1: Summary of Quotes to Replace the Old Market House Annex HVAC System 
 

Contractor  Remove and Replace 
Furnace and  

Air Conditioning  

Remove and Replace 
Furnace Only * 

Install OPTIONAL 
Humidifier 

GeoStar  $8,612  $3,810  $681 

Holland Heating & AC   $9,900  $4,250  $650 

Loescher Heating & AC  $6,525  $2,925  $200 

Top Notching Heating & AC  $6,998  $3,321  $750 
 

*Note: If we choose to move forward with a furnace‐only replacement, a contractor is suggesting 
installing a coil for the air conditioning while we are replacing the furnace. Add approximately $500 to 
the furnace‐only estimate for this proactive option. 
 
It is estimated that replacing these units will also lower the annual utility bills which the City also pays.  
I would submit for any eligible rebates from our utility providers. 
 
I am asking for your consideration for a budget amendment to allow for this essential update, and if 
granted also permission to award a contract, and a decision on whether to replace the furnace only or 
furnace and air conditioner for the Hello Galena facility. Thank you. 

Page 60 of 90



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 19, 2018 

RE:    Insurance Renewal  
 
At the end of December, the city’s workers’ compensation, liability, auto, portable equipment 
and public official’s insurance policies with the Illinois Municipal League Risk Management 
Association (IMLRMA) will expire.  To extend coverage, the IMLRMA has quoted a new 
premium for next year and has again offered the 85/130 Minimum Maximum option.   
 
Effective for the year beginning January 1, 2019, the proposed policy carries a premium of 
$249,202.  This represents 4.0 percent decrease from last year’s premium of $259,567.  With 
about 800 municipalities in the ILMRMA insurance pool, the renewal rate is calculated from a 
combination of the loss experience of the whole pool as well as that of the individual 
municipality.  The value of insured property and the payroll also contribute to the premium.   
 
By committing to the 85/130 Minimum Maximum (Min/Max) option, the city may reduce the 
proposed premium $28,900.  With this savings, the City will pay a premium of $220,302 
(includes 1 percent discount for paying entire premium by November 21).  The potential savings 
with the 85/130 program is an incentive for our municipality to practice sound risk 
management and avoid claims that may result in losses.    
 
The structure of the Min/Max option is relatively straightforward.  If losses are incurred above 
85 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims, the city will be responsible 
for each dollar up to 130 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims.  In this 
worst‐case scenario, the city would pay $302,109 for calendar year 2019.  Only claims filed 
during the 2019 calendar year would be counted for the purpose of determining if the city 
exceeds the 85 percent threshold.  If the city does not exceed the 85 percent threshold, the 
total premium for the year would be 85 percent (plus administrative costs) or $220,302. 
 
Though we have incurred significant losses in some years, the city’s long‐term loss history 
confirms that the Min/Max option is effective method of reducing insurance costs.  Through 
November 2, the City has saved more than $187,400 by participating in the Min/Max since 
joining the program in 1998. 
 

 

Page 61 of 90



2 of 2 

Our current Liability Fund budget contains $241,000 for the insurance premium costs.  This 
amount exceeds the proposed premium of $220,302 by more than $20,600.  I recommend you 
authorize the city’s participation in the IMLRMA’s 85/130 Min/Max plan by passing the 
attached ordinance (including waiving the second reading) and by authorizing the payment of 
the premium.    
    

Page 62 of 90



Page 63 of 90



Page 64 of 90



Page 65 of 90



 
 

 

Ordinance #O‐18‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE IMLRMA MINIMUM/MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

  ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena, a member in good standing of the 
Illinois Municipal League Risk Management Association and party to the IMLRMA 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Contract, has been fully apprised of the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement which amends and supplements the IMLRMA 
Declarations pages dated 01/01/2019 to 01/01/2020 and all endorsements thereto. 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena finds it to be in the best interest of the 
municipality to make its IMLRMA contribution in accordance with the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement.   
 
  Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena: 
 

1. That the execution of the IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Contribution 
Agreement for a one (1) year period beginning 01/01/2019 and ending 
01/01/2020 is hereby authorized. 

2. That the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby granted authority to execute 
the IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Agreement which amends and 
supplements the IMLRMA Declarations pages dated 01/01/2019 to 
01/01/2020 and all endorsements thereto. 

3. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval.   

 
 

AYES:    
 
NAYS:    
 
PRESENT:    
 
ABSENT:    
 

 
____________________________________________ 

Terry Renner, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
           Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
 

Page 66 of 90



 
 

 

 
 
 
Passed this ___ day of November, 2018. 
 
Approved this ___ day of November, 2018. 
 
I, Mary Beth Hyde, Clerk of the City of Galena, Illinois, do hereby Certify that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of Ordinance No. O‐18‐ as adopted the ___ day of November, 2018.   
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 67 of 90



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 1, 2018 

RE:    Tax Levy 
 
 
Before the last Tuesday in December, the City must adopt a tax levy ordinance for property 
taxes to be collected next fiscal year.  This year, the last Tuesday in December is the Christmas 
holiday, so the ordinance must be adopted and filed with the County Clerk by December 21. 
Prior to considering and adopting the ordinance, the council must make a motion 
communicating the amount of taxes the City expects to levy.  This report is intended to provide 
you with the information you need to make the necessary motion. 
 
I have completed the calculations needed to determine our revenue needs and the property tax 
revenue available under the voter‐approved Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL).  I 
used the assessed value estimate from the County Assessor in estimating the available property 
tax revenue.  In the same manner as in recent years, I am presenting two options.  First, levy 
the same amount as last year.  Second, levy the maximum amount available under PTELL.  
Please know, these are not the only options.  The city council may set the levy at any amount 
up to the maximum allowed under PTELL.    
 
In preparing the levy options, I calculated expected revenues, expenses and fund balances for 
all funds supported by the tax levy for the current and next fiscal year.  My goal was to levy 
sufficiently to ensure that each fund finishes the coming year in compliance with the Minimum 
Fund Balance Policy.  For most funds, this means the fund would end the fiscal year with a 
balance of at least 30 percent of annual expenses.    
 
With the first option, the city would collect $1,402,029 of property taxes in 2019, the same as in 
2018.  The levy rate would decrease slightly from $1.399 to $1.394 per $100 of equalized 
assessed value.  With the second option, the city would collect all the new tax dollars available 
under PTELL.  Considering an expected decline in the city‐wide equalized assessed value of 
current property (following successful appeals of value by several commercial properties), the 
value of new construction, and a Consumer Price Index increase of 2.1%, the City could collect a 
maximum of $37,664 new tax dollars.   
 

 

Page 68 of 90



2 of 5 

If we were to collect the maximum, our tax (levy) rate would increase from $1.39 to $1.43 per 
$100 of equalized assessed value.  The total dollars collected from the levy would increase from 
$1,402,029 to $1,439,693.  Under this scenario, I would anticipate all levy supported funds 
ending next fiscal year in compliance with the Minimum Fund Balance Policy.   The property tax 
rate for the General Corporate tax fund would be at the maximum level required to be eligible 
for State of Illinois and Jo Daviess County funding for the Dewey Avenue bridge replacement 
(refer to Petition adopted at the October 27, 2014 city council meeting).    
 
According to the Truth in Taxation law, the City must conduct a public hearing on the proposed 
tax levy if the total levy dollars levied are expected to exceed the previous year’s levy dollars by 
more than five percent.  Levying the maximum would result in an increase of 2.6% of actual levy 
dollars over last year.  A public hearing is not required with either option.   
 
To make the official determination of whether a public hearing is required, you are required to 
adopt a motion stating the amount of property tax the City expects to levy.   The recommended 
motion would state, “The amount of property taxes the City of Galena expects to levy in 
2018, to be collected in 2019, is $ ______________.”    
 
At the meeting following your decision on the amount you expect to levy, the first reading of 
the actual tax levy ordinance would be presented.  Again, the ordinance must be approved and 
filed not later than December 21. 
 
I have attached an Addendum to this report that provides more detail about how the levy is 
calculated, the maximum levy by fund, as well as a historical view of the City’s tax levy.   
 
 

Page 69 of 90



3 of 5 

ADDENDUM 
 
This report is intended to explain the effect of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law 
(PTELL) on the tax levy, the individual components of the levy and the maximum levy for fiscal 
year 2019‐20.    
  
PTELL 
From one year to the next, the amount we may increase our tax levy is prescribed by PTELL.  
The 1991 law was intended to limit property tax growth by allowing a taxing district to receive a 
limited inflationary increase in taxes on existing property, plus an additional amount for new 
construction.  
 
With PTELL, a formula was established for calculating the “limiting rate” or the maximum levy 
rate available to the taxing district each year.  The limiting rate dictates the total taxes that may 
be levied and collected.  Only two factors can increase the limiting rate.  First, the formula takes 
into account the annual cost of living (CPI) increase.  This year the CPI adjustment is 2.1% (the 
same as the current year).  Second, the formula considers the equalized assessed value (EAV) of 
any new construction or annexations that have occurred during the year.  For the coming levy 
year, our new construction (and annexations) is estimated to have an equalized value of 
$573,982.  This is an estimate from the Jo Daviess County Assessor.    
 
The limiting rate for the coming tax year is estimated as 1.43% of the total city‐wide EAV of 
$100,517,052.  Expressed another way, the limiting rate is $1.43 per $100 of EAV.  The limiting 
rate is an increase from $1.39 in the current year.   
 
Multiplying the limiting rate by the total estimated city EAV of $100,517,052 results in a 
maximum tax levy for the coming year of $1,439,693.  This calculation is expressed as follows: 
 

$100,517,052 (total city EAV) x 1.43% (limiting rate) = $1,439,693 (maximum levy) 
 

The amount of new dollars that we can add to our tax base is calculated as the difference 
between the maximum levy ($1,439,693) and the current year levy ($1,402,029).  The 
difference or the amount of new dollars we may levy is $37,664 or 2.1% more than the current 
year.  This calculation is expressed as follows:    
 

$1,439,693 (maximum levy) ‐ $1,402,029 (current year levy) = $37,664 (new tax dollars) 
 

According to the PTELL, if a taxing body does not levy for all the new dollars allowed by the 
limiting rate, it may never use the tax dollar value of the CPI or new construction from that year 
in determining future tax levies.  If a taxing body consistently levies for less than is allowed by 
the limiting rate, the loss of potential tax dollars is compounded.  A public referendum is the 
only way to levy at a rate greater than the limiting rate.     
 

   

Page 70 of 90



4 of 5 

Tax Levy Components  
After determining the maximum levy allowed by PTELL, we must decide the amount of the 
available new dollars to collect and how to distribute the dollars across the individual tax funds.  
The tax levy is comprised of 18 separate levies or funds.  Current fund balances and anticipated 
non‐property tax revenues and expenses are evaluated to determine the amount of taxes to 
collect in each individual fund.   Assuming the maximum levy, the $1,439,693 of tax dollars 
could be effectively distributed across the various funds is shown in Table 1.  The actual levy 
rate for each fund is also shown along with the rate and taxes levied in 2018.   

 
Table 1.   Tax Levy Comparison: 2018 and 2019 (Proposed) 

 
 

Levy Fund 
2018
Actual 
Rate 

2018
Actual 
Tax 

2019
Proposed 

Tax 

2019 
Proposed 
Rate 

Corporate  0.4375 $438,319  $439,762   0.4375

Street and Bridge1  0.0000 ‐    ‐  0.0000

Police Protection  0.0240 $24,085  $25,084   0.0250

School Crossing Guard  0.0000 $10  $10   0.0000

Street Lighting  0.0000 $10  $10   0.0000

Audit  0.0174 $17,503  $19,500   0.0194

Emergency Services  0.0008 $862  $857   0.0009

Garbage  0.0000 $10  $10   0.0000

Unemployment Insurance  0.0025 $2,505  $2,500   0.0025

Workman’s Compensation  0.0758 $76,002  $156,500   0.1557

Liability Insurance  0.0998 $100,007  $17,500   0.0174

IMRF  0.1048 $105,006  $113,000   0.1124

Parks  0.0449 $45,004  $82,750   0.0823

Social Security  0.1577 $158,005  $137,000   0.1363

Levee/Flood Control  0.0768 $77,004  $80,000   0.0796

Fire Protection  0.3570 $357,678  $365,189   0.3633

Water Treatment  0.0000 $10  $10   0.0000

Chlorination  0.0000 $10  $10   0.0000

TOTAL  1.3994 $1,402,029  $1,439,693    $1.4323 

 
When the tax levy is passed and the taxes are collected, the revenue generated by the 18 
individual funds can only be used for the respective purpose of each fund.  For instance, the 
Liability Insurance tax can only be used to pay for the city’s liability insurance.  Likewise, the 
Audit Tax can only be used to pay for the annual audit.  The only individual fund that can be 
expended or used for virtually any purpose is the Corporate Tax.  This tax is deposited in the 
General Fund.  The proposed levy maximizes the General Corporate tax as required to be 
eligible for state and county funding for the Dewey Avenue bridge project.   
 
As a result of a 2006 change in the PTELL law, any individual tax levy funds that have not been 
levied for three consecutive years can only be returned to the levy by referendum approval 

                                                 
1 The city does not levy for Street and Bridge since the overlapping townships levy this tax and reimburse the city.  The reimbursement is for the 
maintenance of streets that are located both in the city and in their townships. 

Page 71 of 90



5 of 5 

from the voters.  I am proposing to levy a minimum ($10 in some instances) in every fund to 
avoid losing any individual levies.   

 
Historical Comparison 
A summary of the tax levy collected, the percent change of the collection from the previous 
year, and the actual tax levy rate is shown in Table 2.    

 
Table 2.  Galena Property Tax Comparison 1995‐2019 

 
Year 

Collected 
Levy 

Collected 
Percent 
Change 

Levy 
Rate  

1995  $719,361 9.7%  2.37 

1996  $719,626 0.0%  2.17 

1997  $782,904 8.8%  2.02 

1998  $801,666 2.4%  1.87 

1999  $811,012 1.2%  1.73 

2000  $822,879 1.5%  1.76 

2001  $822,439 ‐0.1%  1.63 

2002  $843,539 2.6%  1.54 

2003  $848,003 0.5%  1.49 

2004  $880,679 3.9%  1.48 

2005  $921,318 4.6%  1.45 

2006  $978,284 6.2%  1.42 

2007  $1,006,075 2.8%  1.37 

2008  $1,046,599 4.0%  1.32 

20092  $1,301,301 24.3%  1.27 

2010  $1,323,108 1.7%  1.27 

2011  $1,365,624 3.2%  1.30 

2012  $1,378,790 1.0%  1.34 

2013  $1,378,879 0.0%  1.38 

2014  $1,319,506 ‐4.3%  1.36 

2015  $1,341,412 1.7%  1.38 

2016  $1,339,527 0.0%  1.38 

2017  $1,360,797 1.6%  1.36 

2018  $1,402,029 3.0%  1.39 

20193  $1,439,693 2.6%  1.43 

           
As shown in the table, Galena’s levy rate has decreased from a high of $2.37 in 1995 to a low in 
2009 and 2010 of $1.27.  The tax rate has remained relatively flat since 2013, increasing just 
$0.01 per $100 of EAV over the past five years.   Again, the maximum increase for 2019 would 
be $0.04 per $100 of EAV.  This increase would equate to a $13 per year property tax increase 
for a $100,000 home. 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

                                                 
2 Value from expired TIF district returned to tax base. 
3 Based on the maximum levy. 

Page 72 of 90



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Administration
Personnel - Salaries 141,882 141,882 0
Personnel - Elected 17,500 500 17,000
Professional Services 592,500 592,500 0
Communications 4,450 4,450 0
Professional Development 2,600 2,600 0
Debt Service 675,623 675,623 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 35,450 35,450 0

Total 1,470,005 1,453,005 17,000

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Finance
Personnel - Salaries 95,055 95,055 0
Insurance Benefits 455,425 121,325 334,100
Maintenance Services 36,790 36,790 0
Professional Services 16,660 16,660 0
Communications 9,700 9,700 0
Professional Development 2,575 2,575 0
Service Charges 8,300 8,300 0
Other Contractual Services 4,500 4,500 0
Maintenance Supplies 7,000 7,000 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 636,005 301,905 334,100

       BE IT ORDAINED BY the Mayor and City Council of the City of Galena, Illinois:

An Ordinance levying taxes for all corporate purposes for the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2019, and ending April 30, 2020.

FOR TAXES TO BE COLLECTED IN 2019
ORDINANCE NO. 0-18-__  2018 TAX LEVY ORDINANCE

       SECTION I: That the amount hereinafter set forth, or so much thereof as may be 
authorized by law, and the same are hereby levied upon all property subject to taxation 
within the municipality as that property is assessed and equalized for the current year and for 
such purposes as: Parks & Recreation; General Corporate; Garbage Disposal; Flood 
Control; Fire Protection: Annual Audit: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund; Social Security; 
Chlorination; Street Lighting; Water Treatment; Street & Bridge; Police Protection; 
Unemployment Insurance; Worker's Compensation; City Tort Judgment & Liability; 
Emergency Services and School Crossing Guards for the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2019, and ending April 30, 2020. 

11/5/2018

Page 1 

Page 73 of 90



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
City Clerk
Personnel - Salaries 9,100 0 9,100
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 5,000 5,000 0
Communications 1,700 1,700 0
Professional Development 3,000 3,000 0
Service Charges 0 0 0
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 18,800 9,700 9,100
 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Zoning
Personnel - Salaries 62,854 37,204 25,650
Personnel - Elected 2,100 2,100 0
Professional Services 3,150 3,150 0
Communications 1,250 1,250 0
Professional Development 600 600 0
Maintenance Supplies 1,000 1,000 0
Capital Outlays 2,000 2,000 0
Other Expenditures 0 0 0

Total 72,954 47,304 25,650

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Building
Personnel - Salaries 67,643 60,643 7,000
Other Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 1,000 1,000 0
Communications 400 300 0
Professional Development 4,800 4,800 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 3,500 1,500 0

Total 77,343 68,243 9,100

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Engineering
Personnel - Salaries 8,258 8,258 0
Professional Services 6,500 3,500 3,000
Professional Development 1,900 1,900 0
Capital Outlays 1,100 1,100 0

Total 17,758 14,758 3,000
 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Police
Personnel - Salaries 693,032 667,948 25,084
Other Benefits 7,500 7,500 0
Maintenance Services 7,000 7,000 0
Professional Services 32,270 32,270 0
Communications 6,500 6,500 0
Professional Development 8,200 8,200 0
Service Charges 8,700 8,700 0
Maintenance Supplies 15,900 15,900 0
General Supplies 5,000 5,000 0
Capital Outlays 50,500 50,500 0
Other Expenditures 20,715 20,715 0

Total 855,317 830,233 25,084

11/5/2018

Page 2 

Page 74 of 90



 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Public Works
Personnel - Salaries 387,611 345,779 41,832
Other Benefits 600 600 0
Maintenance Services 45,100 45,100 0
Professional Services 7,400 7,400 0
Communications 1,650 1,650 0
Professional Development 500 500 0
Service Charges 43,600 43,600 0
Maintenance Supplies 58,500 58,500 0
General Supplies 28,850 28,850 0
Debt Service 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 340,100 340,100 0

Total 913,911 872,079 41,832
 

General Fund Grand Total 4,062,093 3,597,227 464,866

REF: General Corporate Tax (65ILCS 5/8-3.1) 439,762
REF: Police Protection Tax (65ILCS 5/11-1-3 & 5.1) 25,084
REF: School Cross Guards Tax (65ILCS 5/11-80-23) 10
REF: Street Lighting Tax (65ILCS 5/11-80-5) 10
REF: Street & Bridges (65ILCS 5/11-81-2) 0

Total Corporate Levy 464,866

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Annual Audit
Annual Audit 27,700 8,200 19,500
Book Reconciliation 0 0 0

Total 27,700 8,200 19,500

REF: Audit Tax (65ILCS 5/8-8-8) 19,500

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Emergency Services
Ambulance Service 0 0 0
Siren Maintenance 1,000 600 400
Communication 500 393 107
Electric 1,700 1,350 350
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 3,200 2,343 857

REF: Emergency Services & Disaster Operations Tax (65ILCS 5/8-3-16) 857

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Garbage Collection
Personnel Services - Salaries 9,991 9,991 0
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Professional Services 229,040 229,030 10
Communications 4,000 4,000 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 4,500 4,500 0

Total 247,531 247,521 10

10REF: Garbage Disposal Tax
(651LCS 5/11-19-4)

11/5/2018

Page 3 

Page 75 of 90



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Workers’ Compensation
Workers’ Compensation Insurance 95,200 0 156,500

Total 95,200 0 156,500

156,500

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Liability Insurance
Insurance Benefit 0 0 0
City Building & Content 50,200 32,700 17,500
Public Official's Liability 350 350 0
Automobile Insurance 18,300 18,300 0
Tort Insurance 73,600 73,600 0
Inland Marine 3,700 3,700 0
Boiler & Machinery 3,500 3,500 0
Employee Crime 0 0 0
Employee's Bond 0 0 0
Treasurer's Bond 0 0 0

Total 149,650 132,150 17,500

REF: City Tort Judgment & Liability Insurance Fund (745 ILCS 10/9-107) 17,500

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Parks Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 83,900 1,150 82,750
Maintenance Services 31,650 31,650 0
Professional Services 3,550 3,550 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 3,500 3,500 0
General Supplies 11,000 11,000 0
Debt Service 54,345 54,345 0
Capital Outlays 485,200 485,200 0
Other Expenditures 5,300 5,300 0

Total 678,445 595,695 82,750

REF: Parks Tax (651LCS 5/11-98-1) 82,750

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Social Security
Social Security Tax 149,700 0 137,000

Total 149,700 0 137,000

REF: Social Security Fund (40ILCS 5/21-110 & 110.1) 137,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Flood Control Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 44,727 0 44,000
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 10,000 0 10,000
Professional Services 0 0 0
Communications 0 0 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 2,500 0 2,500
Maintenance Supplies 2,500 0 2,500
General Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 14,000 0 20,000
Other Expenditures 1,000 0 1,000
Total 74,727 0 80,000

REF: Levee Tax (65ILCS 5/11-112-1 & 2 80,000

REF: Workers' Compensation and Occupational Disease (7451LCS 10/9-107)

11/5/2018

Page 4 

Page 76 of 90



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Fire Protection Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 28,120 0 28,120
Insurance Benefits 2,200 0 2,200
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 3,800 0 3,800
Professional Services 3,060 0 3,060
Communications 1,850 0 1,850
Professional Development 11,500 0 11,500
Service Charges 17,200 0 17,200
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 13,000 0 13,000
General Supplies 16,500 0 16,500
Capital Outlays 22,500 0 22,500
Other Expenditures 689,700 0 245,459
Total 809,430 0 365,189

REF: Fire Protection Tax (65ILCS 5/11-71 & 3) 365,189

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Water Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 129,918 129,908 10
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 0 0 0
Communications 2,400 2,400 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 8,000 8,000 0
Other Contractual Services 330,000 330,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 300 300 0
Debt Service 162,100 162,100 0
Capital Outlays 250,500 250,500 0
Other Expenditures 32,690 32,690 0

Total 915,908 915,898 10

REF: Waterworks System Tax (65ILCS 5/11-131-1) 10

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Sewer Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 114,037 114,037 0
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 1,300 1,300 0
Professional Services 16,390 16,380 10
Communications 1,300 1,300 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Other Contractual Services 330,000 330,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 300 300 0
Debt Service 602,755 602,755 0
Capital Outlays 132,500 132,500 0
Other Expenditures 103,000 103,000 0

Total 1,301,582 1,301,572 10

REF: Chlorination of Sewage Tax (65ILCS 5/11-142-3) 10

11/5/2018

Page 5 

Page 77 of 90



 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Pension Benefits 163,500 50,500 113,000
Personal Property Replacement 
Tax (Library) 8,000 8,000 0

Total 171,500 58,500 113,000

REF: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (40 ILCS 5/7-171) 113,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Unemployment Insurance 
Unemployment Payments 8,300 5,800 2,500

Total 8,300 5,800 2,500

Unemployment Compensation Fund (745ILCS 10/9-1-7) 2,500

TAX LEVY SUMMARY AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Corporate Tax 439,762
Police Protection Tax 25,084
School Cross Guards 10
Street Lighting 10
Street & Bridges Tax 0
Annual Audit Tax 19,500
Emergency Services Tax 857
Garbage Disposal Tax 10
Worker's Compensation Tax 156,500
City Tort Judgment & Liability Insurance 17,500
Parks & Recreation Tax 82,750
Social Security Tax 137,000
Flood Control Tax 80,000
Fire Protection Tax 365,189
Water Treatment Tax 10
Chlorination Tax 10
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 113,000
Unemployment Insurance Tax 2,500

TOTAL TAX LEVY 1,439,693

          SECTION III: That if any section, subdivision or sentence of this ordinance shall for 
any reason be held invalid or to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portion of this ordinance.

SECTION IV: That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption as
provided by law.

          SECTION II: That the amount levied for each object and purpose is placed in a 
separate column under the heading, "Amount Levied," which appears over same being as 
follows, to-wit:

11/5/2018

Page 6 

Page 78 of 90



AYES:   

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   

Terry Renner, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk

Adopted this 26th day of November, 2018 pursuant to a roll call vote by the City Council of
the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

11/5/2018

Page 7 

Page 79 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AZAVAR AUDIT (120348)
146064 1 Invoice REV. AUDIT FEES 10/15/2018 52.80 01.11.549.00

Total AZAVAR AUDIT (120348): 52.80

BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71)
5790 1 Invoice CRACK SEAL 10/26/2018 100.00 01.41.514.02

Total BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71): 100.00

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA (359)
101218 1 Invoice CHRISTMAS GREENS/CI 10/12/2018 150.00 01.11.929.01
101218 2 Invoice CHRISTMAS GREENS/PO 10/12/2018 64.00 01.21.549.00
101218 3 Invoice CHRISTMAS GREENS/TU 10/12/2018 110.00 58.54.553.00

Total BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA (359): 324.00

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
101518 1 Invoice RENTLY 10/15/2018 30.00 01.13.511.03
101518 2 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 10/15/2018 21.24 01.16.553.00
101518 3 Invoice RENTLY 10/15/2018 30.00 58.54.532.00
101518 4 Invoice BACKUP SERVICES 10/15/2018 558.00 01.13.512.04
101518 5 Invoice CONTINUING EDUCATIO 10/15/2018 15.00 01.11.563.00
101518 6 Invoice TRAVEL 10/15/2018 403.41 01.16.562.00
101518 7 Invoice PARADE CAUTION TAPE 10/15/2018 104.11 01.41.652.00
101518 8 Invoice SIGNS 10/15/2018 60.23 01.41.652.04
101518 9 Invoice WEED CONTROL 10/15/2018 345.06 17.52.652.00
101518 10 Invoice OVAL GARDEN URN 10/15/2018 698.00 17.52.890.00
101518 11 Invoice DEPOT RECEPTION PLA 10/15/2018 43.29 01.11.929.01

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 2,308.34

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION INSTITUTE (120623)
1821 1 Invoice FOIA MANUALS 10/23/2018 44.60 01.11.553.00

Total CITIZEN PARTICIPATION INSTITUTE (120623): 44.60

CIVIL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. (1122)
102418 1 Invoice 2" HMA OVERLAY 10/24/2018 155,507.28 41.61.860.02

Total CIVIL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. (1122): 155,507.28

COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244)
0466268 1 Invoice NEW PAGERS 10/19/2018 914.31 22.22.652.00
0466334 1 Invoice UPGRADE RADIO 10/25/2018 302.00 01.21.513.06

Total COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244): 1,216.31

CORE & MAIN LP (120473)
J709849 1 Invoice METERS 10/26/2018 3,665.21 51.42.831.00

Total CORE & MAIN LP (120473): 3,665.21

Page 80 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

CUB SCOUT PACK 93 (119712)
101618 1 Invoice COUNTRY FAIR PARKIN 10/16/2018 750.00 01.13.911.00

Total CUB SCOUT PACK 93 (119712): 750.00

CUSTOM FIRE APPARATUS, INC. (118770)
0018512 1 Invoice LITE TOWER CONTROLE 10/12/2018 1,199.47 22.22.613.00

Total CUSTOM FIRE APPARATUS, INC. (118770): 1,199.47

DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500)
110118 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURA 11/01/2018 242.60 01.13.452.00

Total DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500): 242.60

DINGES FIRE COMPANY (120340)
51367 1 Invoice GRAIN BIN RESCUE AUG 10/25/2018 795.00 22.22.840.00

Total DINGES FIRE COMPANY (120340): 795.00

DIVERSEY, LORI (120624)
102618 1 Invoice CR BALANCE REFUND 10/26/2018 31.14 98.115.0

Total DIVERSEY, LORI (120624): 31.14

DRIVE LINE, INC. (285)
235117 1 Invoice NEW TRUCK 11/01/2018 16,526.45 01.41.840.01

Total DRIVE LINE, INC. (285): 16,526.45

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQUIP. CO. (120191)
6190438-00 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 851.00 52.43.929.00
6190452-00 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 1,300.00 20.25.929.00
6190462-00 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 882.41 52.43.929.00
6190518-00 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 991.00 52.43.929.00
6190518-01 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 104.10 52.43.929.00
6190526-00 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 830.94 52.43.929.00

6195320 1 Invoice GENERATOR MAINTENA 10/01/2018 1,790.86 51.42.929.00
6256967 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/25/2018 1,042.73 52.43.929.00

9190526-01 1 Invoice GENERATOR ANNUAL S 10/01/2018 104.10 52.43.929.00

Total ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQUIP. CO. (120191): 7,897.14

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)
6370 1 Invoice REBUILD DRINKING FOU 10/23/2018 721.61 17.52.517.02
6417 1 Invoice FOUNTAIN 11/01/2018 325.00 17.52.517.02

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 1,046.61

FARNER BOCKEN COMPANY (792)
6558171 1 Invoice CREDIT 06/11/2018 8.85- 59.55.652.05
6604214 1 Invoice CONCESSION SUPPLIES 07/06/2018 2,629.04 59.55.652.05
6651962 1 Invoice CONCESSION SUPPLIES 08/02/2018 335.89 59.55.652.05

Page 81 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total FARNER BOCKEN COMPANY (792): 2,956.08

FISCHER EXCAVATING, INC. (25638)
102618 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 10/26/2018 439,181.56 15.41.850.00

Total FISCHER EXCAVATING, INC. (25638): 439,181.56

GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20)
110118 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 11/01/2018 300.00 58.54.929.00

Total GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20): 300.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00063693 1 Invoice ANNUAL TREASURERS R 10/17/2018 570.00 01.13.554.00
00063848 1 Invoice PUBLIC HEARING NOTIC 10/26/2018 53.20 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 623.20

GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711)
103118 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARKING 10/31/2018 1,678.00 01.13.911.00

Total GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711): 1,678.00

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
95699 1 Invoice MONTHLY HOSTING FEE 09/01/2018 115.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 115.00

GUARDIAN (120502)
110118 1 Invoice VISION INSURANCE 11/01/2018 187.19 13.218.0

Total GUARDIAN (120502): 187.19

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI012251 1 Invoice TOWING SERVICE 10/31/2018 240.00 01.11.549.00

GWI1012046 1 Invoice VALVE STEM EXTENSIO 09/28/2018 40.19 22.22.613.00
GWI1012062 1 Invoice SWEEPER 10/02/2018 112.54 01.41.613.11

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 392.73

H. B. WILKINSON (31)
102618 1 Invoice TITLE RESEARCH/DAVIS  10/26/2018 220.00 01.11.549.00

Total H. B. WILKINSON (31): 220.00

HEAVY EQUIPMENT SERVICES, INC. (120503)
C110219 1 Invoice 2011 INT. DUMP 10/01/2018 32.00 01.41.613.06

Total HEAVY EQUIPMENT SERVICES, INC. (120503): 32.00

HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99)
45219 1 Invoice FURNACE INSPECTION &  10/11/2018 342.89 59.55.511.01
45300 1 Invoice INSPECTION/HEATING/A 10/22/2018 154.06 01.21.511.00

Page 82 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

45302 1 Invoice GARAGE 10/22/2018 70.00 01.41.511.00

Total HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99): 566.95

HUNTINGTON, LORI (120)
103018 1 Invoice MEALS/TAKE DRUGS TO  10/30/2018 36.80 01.21.562.00

Total HUNTINGTON, LORI (120): 36.80

HYDE, MARY BETH (101)
102318 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 10/23/2018 530.41 01.14.562.00

Total HYDE, MARY BETH (101): 530.41

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)
71410 1 Invoice IIW STUDY 10/29/2018 1,228.50 51.42.831.05

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 1,228.50

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152)
110118 1 Invoice BACKGROUND CHECK 11/01/2018 54.00 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152): 54.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1810340 1 Invoice STREET IMPROVEMENT 10/04/2018 280.00 01.41.860.00
1810727 1 Invoice STORM SEWER HIGH OF 10/16/2018 912.00 01.41.514.06
1811090 1 Invoice SLUDGE BARN WATER LI 10/25/2018 79.00 01.41.863.09
1811383 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 11/01/2018 550.00 01.41.514.06

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 1,821.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
110118 1 Invoice LIFT STATION 11/01/2018 147.04 52.43.850.09
110118 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 185.82 01.13.571.01
110118 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 591.29 01.21.571.01
110118 4 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 11/01/2018 388.26 01.41.571.01
110118 5 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 125.82 12.10.571.01
110118 6 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 266.83 17.52.571.01
110118 7 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL 11/01/2018 304.99 20.25.576.01
110118 8 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 497.65 22.22.576.01
110118 9 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 1,036.56 58.54.571.01
110118 10 Invoice POOL/ELECTRIC 11/01/2018 238.35 59.55.571.01
110118 11 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 11/01/2018 33.83 01.41.571.01
110218 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 11/02/2018 5,842.47 15.41.572.00

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 9,658.91

JO DAVIESS COUNTY TREASURER (119867)
100218 2 Adjustmen TAXES - EAST SIDE TAN 10/02/2018 296.22- 01.11.549.00

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY TREASURER (119867): 296.22-

Page 83 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393)
101618 1 Invoice STREET VACATION REC 10/16/2018 63.00 01.14.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393): 63.00

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
102918 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 10/29/2018 18.75 01.16.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 18.75

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
110118 1 Invoice FOOD SERVICE LICENSE 11/01/2018 150.00 59.55.511.02

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 150.00

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
110118 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 11/01/2018 200.12 01.21.563.00
110118 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 11/01/2018 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

JODAVIESS CTY CIRCUIT CLERK (119752)
110118 1 Invoice TICKET REFUND #14114 11/01/2018 140.00 01.11.912.00

Total JODAVIESS CTY CIRCUIT CLERK (119752): 140.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
101518 1 Invoice CLOTHING 10/15/2018 520.68 01.41.579.02
101518 2 Invoice SUPPLIES 10/15/2018 394.81 01.41.652.00
101518 3 Invoice CLOTHING 10/15/2018 99.99 01.41.653.00
101518 4 Invoice EQUIPMENT 10/15/2018 17.48 17.52.514.00
101518 5 Invoice SNOW BROOMS 10/15/2018 628.19 17.52.830.01

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 1,661.15

LAFAYETTE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT (119719)
101018 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 10/10/2018 795.34 15.41.614.00

Total LAFAYETTE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT (119719): 795.34

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9306218445 1 Invoice SMALL TOOLS 10/23/2018 267.05 01.41.653.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 267.05

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
32392 1 Invoice VEHICLE SERVICE 11/06/2018 73.30 01.46.655.00

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 73.30

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
4187 1 Invoice GRANT PARK BBALL CO 10/22/2018 8,380.70 17.52.870.04

Page 84 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 8,380.70

MANNING-HART, REBEKAH (120620)
110118 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 11/01/2018 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total MANNING-HART, REBEKAH (120620): 200.00

MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281)
370388 1 Invoice BACKHOE 10/17/2018 85.40 01.41.613.07

Total MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281): 85.40

MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120)
85048 1 Invoice DOT PHYSICAL 10/01/2018 114.00 01.41.563.00

Total MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120): 114.00

MENARDS (280)
101918 1 Invoice STORM SEWER HIGH ST 10/19/2018 59.96 01.41.514.06

Total MENARDS (280): 59.96

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)
23565297 1 Invoice COPY PAPER/KIP 10/19/2018 794.01 01.45.830.00

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 794.01

MIDWEST MEDICAL CENTER (119435)
110518 1 Invoice MEDICAL EXPENSES/MA 11/05/2018 839.50 01.21.549.00

Total MIDWEST MEDICAL CENTER (119435): 839.50

MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877)
13644 1 Invoice FRANKLIN ST. REPAIR 10/16/2018 8,543.90 01.41.614.05

Total MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877): 8,543.90

MOBOTREX (120256)
230599 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL 10/23/2018 3,706.50 15.41.514.06

Total MOBOTREX (120256): 3,706.50

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
181452 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 11/01/2018 14,276.98 13.44.540.04
181452 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 11/01/2018 4,929.86 13.44.540.00
181452 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 11/01/2018 60.00 13.44.544.03
181452 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 11/01/2018 176.00 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 19,442.84

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
98236 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 07/19/2018 45.60 22.22.611.00

Page 85 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 45.60

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
110118 1 Invoice EMERGENCY LIGHTING  11/01/2018 117.12 01.21.513.06
110118 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2018 46.90 17.52.652.00
110118 3 Invoice 2015 1 TON 11/01/2018 258.84 01.41.613.15

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 422.86

NICOR (151)
110118 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 11/01/2018 45.09 01.13.511.06
110118 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 11/01/2018 102.20 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 147.29

NICOR (F) (118924)
110118 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 11/01/2018 119.96 01.13.571.05
110118 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 11/01/2018 114.36 01.21.571.05
110118 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 11/01/2018 252.06 01.41.571.05
110118 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 11/01/2018 135.88 22.22.571.05
110118 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 11/01/2018 339.02 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 961.28

NIELAND REFRIGERATION (900)
174916 1 Invoice REFRIGERATOR REPAIR 10/30/2018 408.16 58.54.511.00

Total NIELAND REFRIGERATION (900): 408.16

NUTOYS LEISURE PRODUCTS (373)
48419 1 Invoice MEMORIAL BENCH/MAR 10/25/2018 1,611.00 17.52.870.01

Total NUTOYS LEISURE PRODUCTS (373): 1,611.00

OGLE COUNTY SHERRIF'S OFFICE (120619)
110718 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE 11/07/2018 700.00 01.21.540.01
110718 2 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE 11/07/2018 106.32 01.21.562.00

Total OGLE COUNTY SHERRIF'S OFFICE (120619): 806.32

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
110118 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 11/01/2018 99.58 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 99.58

PERRY, KENT R. (120622)
110118 1 Invoice BUILDING PERMIT REFU 11/01/2018 36.00 01.11.912.00

Total PERRY, KENT R. (120622): 36.00

PETITGOUT, GEORGE (120625)
110118 1 Invoice UTILITY LOCATES 11/01/2018 200.00 01.41.514.11

Page 86 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total PETITGOUT, GEORGE (120625): 200.00

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
110518 1 Invoice POSTAGE 11/05/2018 22.60 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 22.60

QUILL CORP. (686)
2066022 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION SUPPLI 10/18/2018 36.98 01.21.652.03
2066022 2 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLES/POLIC 10/18/2018 91.12 01.21.651.00

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 128.10

REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895)
6064 1 Invoice TREE DONATIONS 10/28/2018 1,220.00 17.52.820.06

Total REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895): 1,220.00

RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009)
424151 1 Invoice VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 10/11/2018 410.43 20.25.513.00

Total RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009): 410.43

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0466684 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 10/30/2018 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
539817 1 Invoice TRAIL SIGNS 10/24/2018 276.16 17.52.517.01

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 276.16

SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659)
0370470 1 Invoice FIELD TEST KITS 10/26/2018 94.20 01.21.652.03

Total SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS (659): 94.20

SLAGEL, LINCOLN & kIM (120621)
110118 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 11/01/2018 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total SLAGEL, LINCOLN & kIM (120621): 200.00

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
1452777 1 Invoice SKID LOADER RENTAL 01/08/2018 4,000.00 20.25.832.03

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 4,000.00

SPAHN & ROSE LUMBER CO (1166)
98403161 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/17/2018 21.92 01.41.614.04

Total SPAHN & ROSE LUMBER CO (1166): 21.92

Page 87 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181)
L4515426 1 Invoice WELDING SUPPLIES 10/06/2018 200.00 01.41.652.02

Total SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181): 200.00

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
2334 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 10/22/2018 375.00 13.44.929.00

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 375.00

TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY (120385)
110218 1 Invoice COUNTRY FAIR/HALLOW 11/02/2018 172.92 01.21.549.00

Total TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY (120385): 172.92

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601)
T1909180 1 Invoice MONTHLY CHARGE FOR  10/22/2018 221.35 01.21.542.00

Total TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601): 221.35

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
5176 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY RENTAL 10/20/2018 215.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 215.00

US CELLULAR (92)
101818 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 10/18/2018 51.68 01.41.552.00
101818 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 10/18/2018 46.07 01.11.552.00
101818 3 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 10/18/2018 19.00 01.261.0
101818 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 10/18/2018 40.44 01.21.552.01
101818 5 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 10/18/2018 46.07 01.21.552.01
101818 6 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 10/18/2018 43.59 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 246.85

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
110118 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 11/01/2018 500.00 51.42.551.00
110118 2 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 11/01/2018 250.00 52.43.551.00
110118 3 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 11/01/2018 750.00 13.44.551.00

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 1,500.00

VEOLIA (120598)
90165261 1 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 10/01/2018 27,299.39 51.42.515.00
90165261 2 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 10/01/2018 27,299.39 52.43.515.01
90169499 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 11/01/2018 27,299.39 52.43.515.01
90169499 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 11/01/2018 27,299.39 51.42.515.00

Total VEOLIA (120598): 109,197.56

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
110118 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 11/01/2018 75.12 53.48.555.00

Page 88 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     10
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 75.12

VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507)
110118 1 Invoice BENCH PLAQUE/THIES 11/01/2018 173.00 17.52.870.01
110118 2 Invoice GATEWAY PARK FOUNT 11/01/2018 223.00 17.52.870.01
110118 3 Invoice THIES BENCH PLAQUE 11/01/2018 125.00 17.52.870.01

Total VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507): 521.00

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
102418 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/24/2018 13.67 01.13.654.01
102418 2 Invoice VOLUNTEER FAIR 10/24/2018 11.85 01.13.651.02
102418 3 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/24/2018 32.36 01.13.654.00
102418 4 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/24/2018 39.96 01.13.654.01
102418 5 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 10/24/2018 110.23 01.21.651.00
102418 6 Invoice CLOTHING 10/24/2018 94.70 01.41.579.02
102418 7 Invoice SUPPLIES 10/24/2018 142.70 01.41.652.00
102418 8 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/24/2018 13.29 17.52.511.05

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 458.76

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D057259 1 Invoice PAPER 09/07/2018 128.22 22.22.651.00
D058805 1 Invoice CITY HALL RESTROOMS 09/26/2018 478.67 01.13.654.00
D058806 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 09/26/2018 507.36 01.13.654.01
D058808 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 09/26/2018 49.66 17.52.511.05
D059162 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/02/2018 151.92 58.54.654.01
D059181 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 10/03/2018 47.30 58.54.654.01
D060062 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 10/17/2018 420.32 01.13.654.00

D060062A 1 Invoice JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 10/17/2018 40.10 01.13.654.00
D060063 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 10/17/2018 414.28 01.13.654.01

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 2,237.83

WEX BANK (119104)
110118 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 11/01/2018 1,249.82 01.41.655.00
110118 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 11/01/2018 269.21 17.52.655.03
110118 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 11/01/2018 1,648.42 01.21.655.00
110118 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 11/01/2018 70.43 01.46.655.00
110118 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 11/01/2018 219.26 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 3,457.14

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
110118 1 Invoice CLEANING SERVICES/TU 11/01/2018 600.00 58.54.537.01
110118 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 11/01/2018 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 710.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
11004 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL 10/31/2018 300.00 01.41.517.02

Page 89 of 90



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     11
Input Dates: 10/23/2018 - 11/30/2018 Nov 08, 2018  03:05PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 300.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
38307 1 Invoice SUPERVISION 10/29/2018 14,262.88 15.41.850.00

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 14,262.88

Grand Totals: 841,918.49

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 6408238
Vendor number hash - split: 9537314
Total number of invoices: 119
Total number of transactions: 181

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 841,918.49 841,918.49

Grand Totals: 841,918.49 841,918.49

Page 90 of 90


	00.00 Agenda 11.13.18
	01.0427 Minutes cc102218
	02.0428 Demolition Ordinance
	03.0429 Bench Street Parking
	04.0431 Turner Hall Lights
	05.0324 K-9 Proposal
	06.0410 Museum Letter of Support
	07.0433 Audit Proposal
	111218b
	Audit Proposal

	08.0434 East Side Water Project
	111318a
	Galena Water Main Project Plan final
	Applicable Code and Standards
	i. The minimum size water main shall be 4-inch nominal diameter in distribution system serving incorporated areas, subdivisions or other closely situated housing or commercial units
	ii. The minimum size water main shall be 3-inch nominal diameter in distribution systems serving rural areas where service connections are widely spaced, water usage per service is low and rates of flow are slow.


	EPA Loan Ordinance

	09.0435 Market House HVAC
	10.0436 Insurance Renewal
	111218a
	Risk Management
	IMLRMA 2018 Ordinance

	11.0437 Tax Levy
	111218b
	Tax Levy ordinannnnnnnc

	12.0438 Warrants 11.13.18



